MIRs

Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority

MEMORANDUM

TO: MIRA Board of Directors

FROM: Donald S. Stein, Chairman

DATE: September 16, 2021

RE: Notice of Regular Telephonic Meeting

There will be a regular telephonic meeting of the Board of Directors of the Materials Innovation and
Recycling Authority (MIRA) on Wednesday, September 22, 2021 at 9:30 a.m.

Members of the public may attend the meeting in person in the board room at MIRA headquarters (masks
required), or may attend the meeting telephonically by calling (929) 205-6099, entering Meeting ID: 865
8497 4456, and entering Passcode: 1126984 when prompted.

The purpose of this meeting will be:

L
11

[1L.

IV.

VL

VIL

VIIL

Pledge of Allegiance

Public Comment — A % hour public portion will be held and the Board will accept written testimony
and allow individuals to speak for a limit of three minutes.

Review and Approve — Minutes of the July 14, 2021 Regular Board Meeting (Attachment 1).
Review and Approve — Minutes of the August 11, 2021 Regular Board Meeting (Attachment 2).

Finance Committee Report

a. Board Action will be sought for a Resolution Regarding accepting the Authority’s Fiscal Year
2021 Annual Financial Report (Attachment 3)

b.  Board Action will be sought for a Resolution Regarding authorizing additional legal
expenditures and use of CSWS Legal Reserve (Attachment 4).

c. Board Action will be sought for a Resolution Regarding authorizing and funding a CSWS
Decommissioning Cost account for Fiscal Year 2022 (Attachment 5).

Policies and Procurement Committee Report — No Report.
OS & HR Committee Report — No Report

Executive Committee



a. Board Action will be sought for a Resolution Regarding an Annual Plan of Operations
(Attachment 6)

IX. Chairman’s and President’s Report
a. Attached Supplemental Information / Other Matters

X. Executive Session to discuss:

a. Pending RFPs and Feasibility Estimates and Evaluations relative to prospective public supply
contracts, including MIRA RFP’s and prospective contracts for Connecticut Solid Waste
System transfer facilities, transportation and disposal of acceptable solid waste at alternate
disposal facilities and operation of MIRAs Jets and the potential impact of same upon MIRA
operating and capital budgets and its Municipal Service Agreements.



TAB 1



MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY

FIVE HUNDRED AND THIRTY-THREE JULY 14, 2021

A Regular Telephonic (Zoom) Board meeting of the Materials Innovation and Recycling

Authority Board of Directors was held on Wednesday, July 14, 2021. Present via audio or video
conferencing were:

Directors:

Chairman Stein

John Adams

Scott Shanley

Jim Hayden

Carl Fortuna, Jr.

Susan Weisselberg

Bert Hunter

Marcia Leclerc (joined 9:40)
Suzette DeBeatham-Brown (until 10:18)
Tom Swarr

Luke Bronin (from 9:45 to 10:27)

Present from MIRA:

Tom Kirk, President

Mark Daley, Chief Financial Officer

Laurie Hunt, Director of Legal Services

John Clark, Director of Operations and Environmental A ffairs
Thomas Gaffey, Director of Recycling & Enforcement

Jeft Duvall, Director of Budgets and Forecasting

Cheryl Kaminsky, Manager of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Dave Bodendorf, Senior Environmental Engineer
Peter Egan, Consultant

Others Present:

Ann Catino, Halloran & Sage



Chairman Stein called the meeting officially to order at 9:37 a.m. and said that a
quorum was present.

PUBLIC PORTION

Chairman Stein said the agenda allowed for a public portion in which the Board would
accept written testimony and allow individuals to speak for a limit of three minutes. As there
were no members of the public who wished to address the Board, the meeting commenced.

1. APPROVAL OF THE JUNE 9, 2021 BOARD MEETING MINUTES

Chairman Stein requested a motion to approve the minutes of the June 9, 2021 Board
meeting. Director Adams made the motion, which was seconded by Director Fortuna.

The motion previously made and seconded was approved by roll call vote. Chairman Stein,
Director Adams, Director Shanley, Director Hayden, Director Fortuna, Director Welsselbelg,
Director Hunter, Director Brown voted yes. Ad Hoc Swarr abstained.

Directors

>
e
I

Nay Abstain

Chairman Stein
John Adams
Jim Hayden

Scott Shanley

Carl Fortuna

Susan Weisselberg
Bert Hunter

Marcia Leclerc

S PR P il e e

Suzette DeBeatham-Brown

e

Ad Hoc Members Aye | Nay Abstain

Tom Swarr X

Luke Bronin




2. RESOLUTION REGARDING APPROVAL OF INSURANCE POLICY
RENEWALS.

Chairman Stein requested a motion on the above-referenced item. The motion was
made by Director Shanley and seconded by Director Fortuna.

WHEREAS, The Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority (“Authority”) maintains certain
insurance policies which expire July 1, 2021; and

WHEREAS, The renewal of such policies is in the best interest of the Authority and
contemplated within its Fiscal Year 2022 adopted budgets;

NOW THEREFORE, be it

RESOLVED: That the President is authorized to bind the following insurance policies effective

for the period July 1, 2021 through July 1, 2022 substantially as presented and discussed at this
meeting:

* General Liability

s Auto Liability

*  Workers Compensation

e Public Officials

¢ Fiduciary

e Crime

e Umbrella/Excess Liability

The motion previously made and seconded was approved by roll call vote. Chairman Stein,
Director Adams, Director Shanley, Director Hayden, Director Fortuna, Director Weisselberg,
Director Hunter, Director Leclerc, and Director Brown voted yes.

| Directors Aye | Nay Abstain

<.<

Chairman Stein
John Adams
Jim Hayden

Scott Shanley

Carl Fortuna

SR e fe s

Susan Weisselberg




Bert Hunter X

Marcia Leclerc X

Suzette DeBeatham-Brown X

Ad Hoc Members Aye | Nay Abstain
Tom Swarr

Luke Bronin

3. RESOLUTION REGARDING MARKET DRIVEN SALE OF SPOT WASTE
DISPOSAL CAPACITY FOR MUNICPAL SOLID WASTE FOR THE
CONNECTICUT SOLID WASTE SYSTEM RESOURCES RECOVERY
FACILITY DURING A FUEL SHORTAGE PERIOD.

Chairman Stein requested a motion on the above-referenced item. The motion was
made by Director Adams and seconded by Director Shanley.

RESOLVED: That the President is hereby authorized to select Spot Waste delivery
offers that are responsive to the needs of the CSWS resources recovery facility during a
Fuel Shortage Period in accordance with Internal Management Procedure No. 140 to

ensure the desired optimal operation of the facility, substantially as discussed and
presented at this meeting, and;

FURTHER RESOLVED: that the President is authorized to select three Spot Waste
delivery offers from All American Waste, LLC, All Waste Incorporated, USA Hauling &

Recycling, Inc., and USA Waste and Recycling, Inc. for delivery of MSW to the CSWS
Resources Recovery Facility, and;

FURTHER RESOLVED: that the President is authorized to select a Spot Waste

delivery offer from John’s Refuse and Recycling LLC for delivery of MSW to the CSWS
Resources Recovery Facility, and;

FURTHER RESOLVED: that the President is authorized to select a Spot Waste

delivery offer from Paine’s Inc. for delivery of MSW to the CSWS Resources Recovery
Facility, and:



FURTHER RESOLVED: that the President is authorized to select a Spot Waste

delivery offer from CWPM LLC for delivery of MSW to the CSWS Resources Recovery
Facility, and;

FURTHER RESOLVED: that the President is authorized to select a Spot Waste
delivery offer from A J Waste Systems LLC for delivery of MSW to the CSWS
Resources Recovery Facility, substantially as presented and discussed at this meeting.

The motion previously made and seconded was approved by roll call vote. Chairman Stein,
Director Adams, Director Shanley, Director Hayden, Director Fortuna, Director Weisselberg,
Director Hunter, Director Leclerc, Director Brown, and Ad Hoc Swarr voted yes.

Directors

>
<

e | Nay Abstain

Chairman Stein
John Adams
Jim Hayden

Scott Shanley
Carl Fortuna

Susan Weisselberg
Bert Hunter

Marcia Leclerc

R i b P R S e s

Suzette DeBeatham-Brown

Ad Hoc Members Aye | Nay Abstain

Tom Swarr X

Luke Bronin

RESOLUTION REGARDING AN AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT FOR
WASTE TRANSPORTATION AND OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE
SERVICES AT THE ESSEX AND WATERTOWN TRANSFER STATIONS.

Chairman Stein requested a motion on the above-referenced item. The motion was
made by Director Adams and seconded by Director Fortuna.



RESOLVED: That the President is authorized to amend the Agreement for Waste
Transportation and Transfer Station Operation and Maintenance Services at the Essex

and Watertown Transfer Stations between MIRA and CWPM, LLC, substantially as
presented and discussed at this meeting,

The motion previously made and seconded was approved by roll call vote. Chairman Stein,
Director Adams, Director Shanley, Director Hayden, Director Fortuna, Director Weisselberg,

Director Hunter, Director Leclerc, Director Brown, Ad Hoc Swarr voted yes. Ad Hoc Bronin
abstained.

Directors

>
et

e | Nay Abstain

Chairman Stein
John Adams
Jim Hayden

Scott Shanley

Carl Fortuna

Susan Weisselberg
Bert Hunter

Marcia Leclerc

el Bl R i i e e

Suzette DeBeatham-Brown

Ad Hoc Members Aye | Nay Abstain

Tom Swarr X

Luke Bronin X

5. EXECUTIVE SESSION

Chairman Stein requested a motion to enter into Executive Session to discuss Pending RFPs
and Feasibility Estimates and Evaluations relative to prospective public supply contracts
including Connecticut Solid Waste System transfer facilities, transportation and disposal of
acceptable solid waste at alternate disposal facilities and operation of MIRA’s Jets, and potential
impact of same upon MIRA operating and capital budgets and adding discussion of Personnel

matters, including re-hiring of the former Director of Operations and Environmental Affairs, to
the agenda.



The motion was made by Director Hayden and seconded by Director Adams.

Chairman Stein requested that the following people remain for the Executive Session, in
addition to the Board members:

Tom Kirk
Mark Daley
John Clark
Peter Egan
Laurie Hunt
Tom Gaftey
Ann Catino

The motion previously made and seconded was approved by roll call. Chairman Stein, Director
Adams, Director Shanley, Director Hayden, Director Fortuna, Director Weisselberg, Director
Hunter, Director Leclerc, Director Brown, Ad Hoc Swarr and Ad Hoc Bronin voted yes.

Directors Aye | Nay Abstain
Chairman Stein X
John Adams X
Jim Hayden X
Scott Shanley X
Carl Fortuna X
Susan Weisselberg X
Bert Hunter X
Marcia Leclerc X
Suzette DeBeatham-Brown X
Ad Hoc Members Aye | Nay Abstain
Tom Swarr X
Luke Bronin X

Executive Session began at 9:58 a.m. and ended at 10:50 a.m., and public session resumed.
Chairman Stein noted that no votes were taken in Executive Session.



6. RESOLUTION APPROVING FILLING THE DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS
AND ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS POSITION

Chairman Stein requested a motion on the above-captioned item. The motion was made
by Director Shanley and seconded by Director Hayden.

WHEREAS, The Materials Innovation and Recycling  Authority (the “Authority”) has

previously adopted a Hiring, Compensation, Promotion and Dismissal Procedure (“Procedure™);
and

WHEREAS, such Procedure requires the President to obtain the approval of the Directors, by a

majority vote, prior to filling the following senior management positions, including Director of
Operations and Director of Environmental Affairs; and

WHEREAS, such Procedure generally provides for the posting and advertising of positions to
be filled, and for deviations to such procedure to be subject to approval by a majority of the
voting members of the Directors present at a scheduled meeting; and

WHEREAS, John Clark, MIRA’s Director of Operations and Environmental Affairs, is leaving,
effective on or about July 16, 2021, and his pending departure warrants expedited hiring of an
experienced and qualified candidate; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Egan was employed by the Authority in various senior level positions since
2001, including as Director of Environmental Affairs since 2001 and as Director of Operations
and Environmental Affairs since 2011, and has unduplicated and rreplaceable institutional
knowledge of those aspects of the Authority’s business, and has remained actively involved in
MIRA’s affairs as a consultant since his departure last winter; and

WHEREAS, the Board and management have determined that it is advisable to promptly fill the
vacant Director of Operations and Environmental Affairs position, and that, based on Mr. Egan’s
prior tenure and performance in that role, he is a highly qualified candidate; and

WHEREAS, Mr. Egan has expressed interest in returning to his prior position with the
Authority; and

WHEREAS, the Authority anticipates suspending waste combustion at the South Meadows
Waste-to-Energy Facility (the “Facility”) and transitioning the Connecticut Solid Waste System
to a transfer operation no later than June 30, 2022, to be followed by decommissioning and an
undetermined level of other potential activities after June 30, 2022, for which the Authority
anticipates it will require the services of a Director of Operations and Environmental Affairs;

NOW, THEREFORE, it is



RESOLVED: That the President is authorized to offer Peter Egan the position of Director of
Operations and Environmental Affairs, at his prior salary and benefits, specifically including
retention of his prior seniority, waiver of the waiting period for 401(k) participation, and
applicable leave time consistent with his cumulative years of service; and

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the President is hereby authorized to enter into a new

employment agreement with Mr. Egan, substantially on the terms and with the provisions
discussed at this meeting; and

FURTHER RESOLVED: Pursuant to Conn. Gen. Stat. Section 22a-277(c) the board hereby
authorizes the President to delegate to Peter W. Egan, upon his hiring for the position of Director
of Operations and Environmental Affairs, as duly authorized representative of the Authority, the
authority to sign regulatory and permit-required applications, reports and other applicable
information submitted by the Authority to the Connecticut Department of Energy &
Environmental Protection, in connection with air, water, and solid waste compliance and
permitting programs, substantially as presented and discussed at this meeting. This delegation of

authority, in the President’s opinion, would be appropriate for the prompt and orderly transaction
of the business of the Authority.

The motion previously made and seconded was approved by roll call vote. Chairman Stein,
Director Adams, Director Shanley, Director Hayden, Director Fortuna, Director Weisselberg,
Director Hunter, Director Leclerc, and Director Brown voted yes.

Directors

>
e

e | Nay Abstain

Chairman Stein
John Adams
Jim Hayden

Scott Shanley

Carl Fortuna

Susan Weisselberg
Bert Hunter

T B il ol Pl e e o

Marcia Leclerc

Suzette DeBeatham-Brown

Ad Hoc Members Aye | Nay Abstain

Tom Swarr

Luke Bronin




7. Adjournment

Chairman Stein requested a motion to adjourn. The motion was made by Director
Shanley and seconded by Director Leclerc. The meeting was adjourned at 10:53 a.m.

10



TAB 2



MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY

FIVE HUNDRED AND THIRTY-FOUR AUGUST 11, 2021

A Regular Telephonic (Zoom) Board meeting of the Materials Innovation and Recycling
Authority Board of Directors was held on Wednesday, August 11, 2021. Present via audio or
video conferencing were:

Directors:

Chairman Stein

John Adams

Jim Hayden

Carl Fortuna, Jr.

Susan Weisselberg

Bert Hunter

Marcia Leclerc

Suzette DeBeatham-Brown
Tom Swarr

Luke Bronin

Present from MIRA:

Tom Kirk, President

Mark Daley, Chief Financial Officer

Laurie Hunt, Director of Legal Services

Peter Egan, Director of Operations and Environmental A ffairs
Thomas Gaftey, Director of Recycling & Enforcement

Cheryl Kaminsky, Manager of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Dave Bodendorf, Senior Environmental Engineer

Roger Guzowski, Contract and Procurement Manager

Tina Mateo, Assistant Director of Budget & Cash Management

Others Present:

Ann Catino, Halloran & Sage



Chairman Stein called the meeting officially to order at 9:33 a.m. and said that a
quorum was present.

PUBLIC PORTION

Chairman Stein said the agenda allowed for a public portion in which the Board would
accept written testimony and allow individuals to speak for a limit of three minutes. As there
were no members of the public who wished to address the Board, the meeting commenced.

1. RESOLUTION REGARDING INTERRUPTIBLE CONTRACT WASTE DELIVERY
AGREEMENT FOR DELIVERY OF ACCEPTABLE SOLID WASTE TO THE
CONNECTICUT SOLID WASTE SYSTEM

Chairman Stein requested a motion on the above-referenced item. The motion was made
by Director Adams and seconded by Director Hunter.

RESOLVED: The President is authorized to enter into a revenue contract with the following

firms for the delivery of Interruptible Contract Waste to the Connecticut Solid Waste System,
substantially as presented and discussed at this meeting:

e Country Transfer LLC
e Murphy Road Recycling LLC

The motion previously made and seconded was approved by roll call vote. Chairman Stein,
Director Adams, Director Hayden, Director Fortuna, Director Weisselberg, Director Hunter,
Director Leclerc, Director Brown, Ad Hoc Swarr and Ad Hoc Bronin voted yes.

Directors Aye | Nay Abstain

Chatrman Stein
John Adams
Jim Hayden

Carl Fortuna

Susan Weisselberg
Bert Hunter

Marcia Leclerc

R LT Pl Pl S e




| Suzette DeBeatham-Brown X

Ad Hoc Members Aye | Nay Abstain
Tom Swarr X
Luke Bronin X

2

2. Discussion regarding solid waste permit modification application associated with
conducting MSW transfer activities at the Waste Processin g Facility.

President Kirk reviewed DEEP’s requirements for MIRA’s proposed permit modification
application, and the steps that MIRA is taking or plans to take, to meet those requirements, and
solicited input from the Board. He also reviewed the efforts of the other regional waste
authorities to improve diversion rates and institute innovative recycling programs.

Director Bronin reiterated the City of Hartford’s opposition to long-term use of the
MIRA South Meadows property as a transfer station. Chairman Stein responded that MIRA
recognizes the City’s position, and believes that MIRA, the City, and DEEP should be meeting to
discuss the means by which MIRA can satisfy its contractual obligations to the participating
municipalities through 2027. Director Bronin agreed that the City would be interested in
participating in such meetings. President Kirk said that he will set up an initial meeting,

3. Adjournment

Chairman Stein requested a motion to adjourn. The motion was made by Chairman Stein
and seconded by Director Hayden. The meeting was adjourned at 10:27 a.m.



TAB 3



RESOLUTION REGARDING ACCEPTANCE OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2021 ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

RESOLVED: That the Board of Directors hereby accepts the Fiscal Year 2021 Annual Financial Report
as discussed and presented in this meeting.



MIR:z:

Materials Innovation an dRacvclmgA thority

MATERIALS lNNOVATl0N AND
RECYCLING AUTHORITY

A Component llnll of the State of c«nnecllcu!

FISCAI. YEARS F.Nlllill JONE 30 2021 AND 2020






Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
E Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
AS OF AND FOR THE YEARS ENDED

JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020
TABLE OF CONTENTS PAGE(S)
Independent Auditor's Report 1-2
Management’s Discussion and Analysis 3-21
Basic Financial Statements:
Statements of Net Position 22-23

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and

Changes in Net Position 24
Statements of Cash Flows 25-26
Notes to the Financial Statements 27-51

Supplementary Information:

Combining Schedule of Statement of Net
Position 52-54

Combining Schedule of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in

Net Position 55
Combining Schedule of Cash Flows 56-57
Combining Schedule of Net Position 58-60

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based 61-62
on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards

This document is printed on recycled content paper

EXHIBIT

[1

M1



Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

This document is printed on recycled content paper

ii



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors of the
Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
Rocky Hill, Connecticut

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority (the
Authority) (a component unit of the State of Connecticut), as of and for the vear ended June 30, 2021, and the related

notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Authority'g#isic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair present
accounting principles generally accepted in the United State o
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our tesponsibility is to express an opinion on fine ments based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards gener;

to financial audits contained in Governn
States. Those standards require that we
financial statements are free from mate

An audit involves performing

wdit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures :

Suditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
ier due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevan The thority's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
ppropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion,

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position

of the Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority as of June 30, 2021, and the respective changes in financial

position and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.



Prior Period Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority as of June 30, 2020, were audited by
other auditors, whose report dated September 30, 2020, expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion
and analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considets them to be an
essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or de any assurance on the information

because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evid to express an opinion or provide any
assurance, , ‘

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opini
the Authority’s basic financial statements, The combining sche
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements

was derived from and relates directly to the underlyin :
statements. Such information has been subjected to the
statements and certain additional procedures, includin

fiancial statements that collectively comprise
presented for purposes of additional analysis
nation is the responsibility of management and
Glier records used to prepare the basic financial
fes applied in the audit of the basic financial

ing™hd reconciling such information directly to the
e basic financial statements or to the basic financial
ordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in

consideration of the Authority pl over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain

provisions of laws, regulations, grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely
to describe the scope of our testing ofjifi€rnal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority's internal control over financial reporting
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the Authority's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Hartford, Connecticut
September XX, 2021

(o]



Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
B Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) of the Materials Innovation and
Recycling Authority’s financial performance provides an overview of the Authority’s financial
activities for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. Please read it in conjunction with the
Authority’s financial statements that follow this section. The MD&A is intended to provide
meaningful information for the current year, and in comparison to prior years, thereby enhancing
the reader’s understanding of the Authority’s financial position and the results of its operations.

Fiscal year 2021 represents a turning point for
the Authority marked by recognition of the need
to prepare to suspend its waste combustion
activities. In fiscal year 2021, the Authority
generated total operating revenue of $71.76
million and incurred $73.25 million in operating
expenses before depreciation, resulting in an
operating loss before depreciation of $1.49
million. Total operating revenues decreased by
$2.51 million (3.4%) reflecting reduced energy
sales, other service charges and other operating
revenue partially offset by increased member service charges. Total operating expenses before
depreciation decreased by $0.87 million (1.2%) primarily reflecting reduced solid waste
operations, and reduced administrative and operational services, partially offset by an increase in
maintenance and utilities and including $5.46 million in contractor severance and
decommissioning costs recognized in anticipation of suspending waste combustion activities.
Income before depreciation decreased by $1.64 million from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2021.
After $14.67 million in depreciation and amortization expenses, the Authority incurred a $16.16
million operating loss. The Authority also incurred net non-operating expenses of $0.58 million
resulting in a total reduction in the Authority’s net position of $16.74 million.

The Authority’s total assets decreased by $10.98 million (11.8%) reflecting a $13.73 million
(30.1%) reduction in net capital assets offset by a $2.75 million (5.8%) increase in total current
assets. The Authority’s total liabilities increased by $5.76 million (104.3%).

The most significant economic factors with the potential to adversely affect the Authority are its
Connecticut Solid Waste System (“CSWS”) business model, the age and serviceability of the
CSWS Waste to Energy Facility (“WTE Facility”), and the Department of Energy and
Environmental Protection’s (“DEEP’s”) unsuccesstul initiative to redevelop the CSWS known as
“Resource Rediscovery”. These challenges were exacerbated in fiscal year 2021 by the
emergence and impact of the Covid 19 pandemic, settlement of disputes concerning operation of
the CSWS Recycling Facility and the need to provide for the suspension of waste combustion at
the WTE Facility and its eventual decommissioning.

The CSWS business model is challenging due to its reliance on volatile non-disposal fee revenue
to maintain disposal fees for CSWS participating municipalities below the levels that trigger
their contract termination provisions. While the Authority has mitigated this challenge by



Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

subsidizing the CSWS to the extent it can with income and reserves from its Property Division,
the adopted tip fees for fiscal years 2018 through 2022 exceeded these triggers, and the
Authority’s ability to continue this subsidy diminishes greatly in its fiscal year 2023,

Major components of the WTE Facility have reached the end of their useful life and its
operational performance has declined steadily. This decline was dramatically demonstrated in
fiscal year 2019 by the failure of its two steam turbines and continues to be evident in its key
performance metrics including boiler availability, energy generation and waste throughput.

Recognizing the sustainability challenges of the CSWS and its WTE Facility, the State
empowered DEEP to undertake a request for proposals process to provide for its redevelopment.
On December 31, 2017, DEEP selected the Sacyr Rooney Recovery Team, LLC (SRRT) to
refurbish the existing CSWS infrastructure while incorporating new waste diversion technology,
as its preferred redevelopment of the CSWS. The Authority engaged in extensive discussions
with SRRT to establish a feasible project structure, in the best interests of the municipalities to
be served, and consistent with both the Authority’s enabling legislation and DEEP’s RFP. These
challenges were addressed in a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) signed at the close of
fiscal year 2019. The MOU established a staged development framework prioritizing
refurbishment of the WTE Facility, a capacity and revenue sharing model, performance
guarantees, public governance, Authority financing of the WTE Facility refurbishment, SRRT
financing of its proposed diversion technology, and strict deadlines to move the project forward.

During fiscal year 2020, the Authority and SRRT executed a fully developed term sheet
consistent with the MOU which included detail financial and demand forecasts as well as the
tipping fees required to support the project. Upon execution of the term sheet, the Authority
actively sought to secure long term municipal waste commitments reflecting the required tipping
fees. However, the Authority was not successful in securing these commitments primarily
because the tipping fee was considered too high. The Authority then sought additional support
for the project from the State in the form of energy price support, State bond support or demand
support (through “flow control”). The Authority advised SRRT that, in the absence of such State
- support, the project was not viable and the Authority would withdraw from further negotiations
and terminate the term sheet. During fiscal year 2021, the State formally rejected any such
support.  Accordingly, the Authority withdrew from further negotiation, terminated the term
sheet, immediately issued a new request for proposals for continued operation of the CSWS
Recycling Facility, and commenced planning and contracting activities necessary to suspend
waste combustion and transition the WTE Facility to transfer operations.

Despite the unsuccessful conclusion of DEEP’s Resource Rediscovery, the Authority has made
significant progress toward the goal of serving its municipal customers at least through
expiration of its municipal service agreements on June 30, 2027. This progress is outlined
- fturther in the Economic Factors and Outlook section of the MD&A. Regrettably this will require
the use of alternative disposal capability, waste transfer, out-of-state landfill disposal and
displacement of certain customers. The Authority is hopeful that these steps will ultimately
represent stop gap measures taken pending new waste management infrastructure development
initiatives in the State. Strong collaboration among the State, DEEP, the Authority and CSWS
participating municipalities is essential to any such development.



Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Using This Report

The Authority is an enterprise fund of the State of Connecticut. Enterprise funds are used in
governmental accounting to present activities where fees are charged to external customers for
goods that are sold or services that are rendered. Usually these activities are financed by debt
that is secured solely by a pledge of the operating revenues of that activity,

The Authority’s financial statements consist of a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows. The financial
statements utilize the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting
in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles as applied to governmental entities.
This means that all assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the Authority are
included on its Statement of Net Position, and that all revenues and expenses are recognized

when eamned and incurred, respectively, on its Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position.

The Authority’s net position is presented in three components (i) net investment in capital assets,
(ii) restricted, and (iii) unrestricted. Net position presented as net investment in capital assets
consists of all significant capital assets owned by the Authority, net of accumulated depreciation,
and reduced by any outstanding balances of bonds or other debt related to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets. Capital assets include land, improvements to land,
easements, buildings, building improvements, vehicles, machinery, equipment, infrastructure,
and all other tangible or intangible assets that are used in operations that have an initial useful
life beyond one year. Capital assets are depreciated over their useful lives and periodic
depreciation expense is reported in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Position. Net Position is presented as restricted when constraints are placed on the Authority’s

assets by creditors, grantors, laws or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position reflect the operating and
non-operating revenues and expenses of the Authority for the fiscal year with the difference
representing the change in net position. That change, combined with the prior year-end net
position total, reconciles to the net position total at the end of the current fiscal year.

The Statement of Cash Flows reports cash activities for the fiscal year resulting from operating
activities, capital and related financing activities, non-capital financing activities and investing
activities. The net result of these activities added to the beginning of the year cash balance
reconciles to the cash balance at the end of the current fiscal year.

Unless otherwise stated, all dollar values presented in this MD&A are in thousands.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is important to

understanding the financial statements. They are presented following this MD&A and the
Authority’s financial statements.



Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticuf

Supplemental Information

Supplemental information includes a Combining Schedule of Statement of Net Position, a
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, a Combining
Schedule of Cash Flows, and a Combining Schedule of Net Position. These schedules segment
the Authority’s financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2021 between the various
operating divisions and projects comprising the Authority. This segmentation reflects the terms
and conditions of facility operating contracts, service agreements, related documents and statutes
generally providing for the financial self-sufficiency of such projects and divisions as described
further in Note 1A to the Financial Statements (Entity and Services). For fiscal year 2021, these
projects and divisions include:

Authority General Fund

Connecticut Solid Waste System

Property Division ‘

Landfill Division

Mid Connecticut Project (for project closeout purposes)

e a o o @

Required Additional Reports

Required additional reports include a report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance With Government Auditing Standards.



Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Statement of Net Position

The net position of the Authority is summarized in Table 1. Net position is a measurement of the
Authority’s financial condition at one point in time. As indicated in Table 1, the Authority’s net
position as of June 30, 2021 (total assets less total liabilities) was $70,780 which represents a
$16,739 (19.1%) reduction from the prior year. The $16,739 reduction in net position is the
result of the decrease in total assets of $10,978 shown on Table 2, combined with an increase in
total liabilities of $5,761 shown on Table 3.

TABLE 1
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
As of June 30,

(Dollars in Thousands)

2021 2020 2019
ASSETS
Current unrestricted assets $ 49,095 $ 47212 $ 30,518
Current restricted assets 1,103 230 209
Total current assets 50,198 47,442 50,727
Non-cwrrent assets:
Capital assets, net 31,863 45,597 56,672
Total non-current assets 31.863 45,597 56,672
TOTAL ASSETS $ 82.061 $ 93,039 S 107399
LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION
LIABILITIES
Current unrestricted liabilities $ 10,229 3 5,341 $ 5,512
Current restricted liabilities 1,052 179 159
Total current liabilities ’ 11,281 5,520 3,671
TOTAL LIABILITIES 11,281 5,520 5,671
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 31,863 45,597 56,672
Restricted 51 51 50
Unrestricted 38,866 41,871 45,006
TOTAL NET POSITION 70,780 87519 101.728
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION $ 82.061 S 93,039 $ 107,399

Assets

The Authority’s total assets are further summarized on Table 2. The $10,978 reduction in total
assets reflects a $2,756 (5.8%) increase in current assets offset by a $13,734 (30.1%) reduction in
non-current assets.



Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Current Assets

The Authority’s total current assets increased by $2,756 (5.8%) reflecting increases in cash and
cash equivalents, receivables, net of allowances and prepaid expenses, partially offset by a
reduction in inventory.

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents increased by a total of $1,208 (3.8%) from June 30, 2020
to June 30, 2021 which includes the net effect of funds transferred from the Property Division to
the CSWS in support of CSWS operations.

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents associated with the CSWS increased by $6,820 reflecting
enhanced support from the Property Division’s tip fee stabilization fund and general fund
provided in response to both the financial impacts of the Covid 19 pandemic and settlement of
contractor disputes over operation of the CSWS Recycling Facility. Savings in budget versus
actual CSWS operating expenses and an increase to the carrying value of the CSWS major
maintenance fund also contributed to this increase.

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents associated with the Authority’s Property Division
declined by $5,442 primarily due to its support of the CSWS. A reduction in the carrying value
of the Property Division’s improvement fund and jets major maintenance reserve also
contributed to this reduction.

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents associated with the Authority’s Landfill Division
declined by $212 primarily reflecting use of the division’s pollution insurance reserve.

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents associated with the Mid Connecticut Project declined by
$21 with application of approved member town distributions to current CSWS billings.

Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents associated with the Authority’s general administration
increased by $63 primarily due to increased funding in its severance reserve.

Restricted cash and cash equivalents increased by $873 (379.6%) from June 30, 2020 to June 30,
2021. This increase is directly associated with waste hauler customer replacement of payment
bonds with cash guarantee of payments.

The $637 (9.2%) increase in receivables, net of allowances, is primarily attributed to a $738
(12.1%) increase in CSWS accounts receivable partially offset by a $101 reduction in accounts
receivable associated with the Property Division and Landfill Division. CSWS accounts
receivable associated with electricity sales, metal sales, tip fees and contractor reimbursements
all increased, and were partially offset by settlement of disputes over operation of the CSWS
Recycling Facility and receipt of settlement funds due for a wheel loader fire.

Other changes in Current Assets are associated with the Authority’s normal business cycle.

The consolidated nature of the Authority’s current assets summarized on Table 2 does not reflect
amounts due from other funds. Amounts due from other funds increased significantly within the



Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Property Division from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2021 due to increased borrowings from the
Property Division’s tip fee stabilization fund. Amounts borrowed and used to supplement the
CSWS operating and major maintenance accounts are recognized as due from other funds in the
Authority’s Combining Schedule of Statement of Net Position attached as Exhibit A to the
Financial Statements. Tip fee stabilization funds loaned and used to supplement the CSWS
improvement fund are not recognized as due from other funds in the Authority’s financial
statements as both of these funds reside within the Property Division. These funds are internally
tracked and considered contingently due to the tip fee stabilization fund.

Non-Current Assets

The $13,734 (30.1%) reduction in non-current assets reflects a $13,165 (70.2%) reduction in
depreciable assets together with a $569 (2.1%) reduction in non-depreciable assets,

The $13,165 (70.2%) reduction in depreciable assets reflects fiscal year 2021 additional
accumulated depreciation of $14,667 combined with net sales and disposals of assets (write offs)
of $135 which were partially offset by additions and transfers to capital assets of $1,637.
Additions and transfers to capital assets included loader and turbine acquisition and repair work,
The $569 (2.1%) reduction in non-depreciable assets is exclusively a reduction in construction in

progress primarily associated with the previous end of useful life of major components of the
WTE Facility.

TABLE 2
SUMMARY OF CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
(Dollays in Thousands)

2021 2021 2020 2020
Increase/  Percent Increase/  Percent
(Decrease)  Increase/ (Decrease)  Increase/
2021 2020 from 2020 (Decrease) 2019 from 2019 (Decrease)
CURRENT ASSETS
Unrestricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 33199 % 31991 § 1208 3.8% $ 31169 $ 822 2.6%
Receivables, net of allowances 7,595 6,958 637 9.2% 11,083 (4,125) (37.2%)
Inventory 5572 3,833 (261) (4.5%) 5779 54 0.9%
Prepaid expenses 2,729 2430 299 12.3% 2487 (57) (2.3%)
Total Unrestricted Assets 49.095 47212 1.883 4.0% 50518 (3,306) (6.5%)
Restricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 1.103 230 873 379.6% 209 2} 10.0%
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 30,198 47442 2,786 5.8% 50,727 13.285) (0.5%)
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Capital Assets:
Depreciable, net 5,581 18,746 (13,165) (70.2%) 25,889 (7,143) (27.6%)
Nondepreciable 26,282 26,851 (569) (2.1%) 30,783 (3.932) (12.8%)
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 31,863 45,597 (13,734) (30.1%) 56,672 (11,075) (19.5%)
TOTAL ASSETS $ 82061 § 93039 § (10978) (11.8%)  § 107399 § (14.360) (13.4%)




Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
B Component Unit of the State of Conmecticut

Liabilities
The Authority’s total liabilities are further summarized on Table 3.

The $5,761 (104.4%) increase in current liabilities from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2021
reflects a $5,471 (164.3%) increase in accrued expenses payable from unrestricted assets, and a
$873 (487.7%) increase in accrued expenses payable from restricted assets which was partially
offset by a $583 (29.6%) reduction in accounts payable.

The $5,471 (164.3%) increase in accrued expenses payable from unrestricted assets is primarily
associated with the Authority’s plan to suspend waste combustion at the WTE Facility and
fransition it to a waste transfer operation. In order to ensure the availability of qualified
contractor personnel to operate the WTE Facility through this transition, the Authority has
amended the facility operating agreement to provide severance payments to contract personnel
that remain on the job until released with the Authority’s consent. The Authority’s liability for
such severance payments is estimated at $2,156. Upon completion of this transition, the
Authority will also proceed to undertake certain decommissioning work within the WTE Facility
in anticipation of its transfer to a future developer. This work will primarily include cleaning the
WTE Facility and support infrastructure of municipal solid waste, ash and other associated
residue caused by its conversion and use as a waste to energy facility, undertaking ACM and
PCB surveys, and sealing and securing building structures. This work is estimated at $3,300.
Other increases to accrued expenses payable from unrestricted assets totaled $15.

The $873 (487.7%) increase in accrued expenses payable from restricted assets reflects waste
hauler customer replacement of payment bonds with cash guarantee of payments.

The $583 (29.6%) reduction in accounts payable is mostly attributed to reductions to CSWS
contractor accounts payable which declined by $560.

The Authority has no long-term liabilities. The Authority’s Resource Recovery Revenue
Refunding Bonds (Covanta Southeastern Connecticut Company Project — 2010 Series A)
supported by a Special Capital Reserve Fund (SCRF), were fully paid in fiscal year 2016. These
were the Authority’s only outstanding bonds at that time and the Authority has not subsequently
incurred any long-term liabilities.

The consolidated nature of the Authority’s current liabilities summarized on Table 3 does not
reflect amounts due to other funds. Amounts due to other funds increased significantly within
the CSWS from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2021 due to increased borrowing from the
Property’s Division’s tip fee stabilization fund. Amounts borrowed and used to supplement the
CSWS operating and major maintenance accounts are recognized as due to other funds in the
Authority’s Combining Schedule of Statement of Net Position attached as Exhibit A to the
Financial Statements. Tip fee stabilization funds loaned and used to supplement the CSWS
improvement fund are not recognized as due from other funds in the Authority’s financial
statements as both of these funds reside within the Property Division. These funds are internally
tfracked and considered contingently due to the tip fee stabilization fund.

10



Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
& Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

TABLE 3
SUMMARY OF CURRENT AND LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
(Dollars in Thousands)

2021 2021 2020 2020
Increase/  Percent Increase/  Percent
(Decrease) Inctease/ (Decrease)  Increase/
2021 2020 from 2020 (Decrease) 2019 from 2019 (Decrease)
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payable from uarestricted assets:
Accounts payable $ 1390 % 1973 § (38} (29.6%) $ 2344 % 371) (15.8%)
Accerued expenses and other current liabilities 8,801 3,330 5471 164.3% 2,347 083 41,9%
Unearned revenue 38 38 - 0.0% 821 (783) {95.4%)
Total payable from unrestricted assets 10229 5341 4888 91.5% 5512 (171 (3.1%)
Payable from restricted assets:
Acccrued expenses and other current liabilities 1,052 179 873 487.7% 159 20 12.6%
Total payable from restricted assets 1.052 179 873 487.7% 158 20 12.6%
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 11281 5.520 5,761 104.4% 5671 (151) (2.7%)
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5 11281 $ 5520 § 5761 1044% § 5671 (15D (2.7%)

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The reduction in the Authority’s net position from June 30, 2020 to June 30, 2021 shown on
Table 1 was generated from the change in net position shown on Table 4, Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position for the year ended June 30, 2021. Changes in
net position represent the results of operations of the Authority (i.e. its net income).

The $16,739 reduction in net position reflects total operating and non-operating revenues of
$72,634 as shown on Table 5 being exceeded by total operating and non-operating expenses of
$89,373 as shown on Table 6. The Authority incurred a $1,488 loss before depreciation and
before certain net non-operating expenses. Depreciation and amortization expenses totaled
$14,669 and the Authority incurred net non-operating expenses of $582.

11



Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
K Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

TABLE 4
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
(Dollars in Thousands)

2021 2020 2019

Operating revenues $ 71,765 $ 74280 $ 71,508
Operating expenses 73,253 74,127 67,541
Income before depreciation and amortization and

other non-operating revenues and (expenses), net (1,488) 153 9,967
Depreciation and amortization 14,669 12,633 39,054
Loss before other non-operating

revenues and (expenses), net (16,157) (12,480) (29,087)
Non-operating revenues (expenses), net (582) (1,729) 11,494
Change in net position (16,739) (14,209) (17,593)
Total net position, beginning of year 87,519 101,728 119321
Total net position, end of year $ 70,780 $ 87519 $ 101,728

Revenues

Table S5 summarizes total revenue
(operating and non-operating) for the
three prior fiscal years ended June 30,
2021. Total operating and non-operating
revenue decreased by $2,222 (3.0%)
from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2021.

As indicated in Table S5, operating
revenue decreased by $2,515 (3.4%)
from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2021.
Other service charges declined $3,472
(36.1%), energy sales declined $2,670
(9.9%) and other operating revenue

declined $541 (13.0%). These reductlons were partlally offset by a $4 168 (12 4%) increase in
member service charges.

The Authority’s other service charges decreased by $3,472 (36.1%) from fiscal year 2020 to
fiscal year 2021. All other service charges are associated with operation of the CSWS and
reflect MSW deliveries by non-participating municipalities. Overall the volume of these
deliveries declined by 35.7% from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2021. Economic uncertainty
caused by the Covid 19 pandemic resulted in a lack of delivery commitments being made
pursuant to the Authority’s Waste Hauler contracts. The Authority also increased its tip fees due

12



Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
B Component Unit of the State of Connecticat

under the Waste Hauler contracts. These two factors lead to a migration to lower priced
contracting alternatives including the Authority’s Interruptible Contract and Spot Market
deliveries. While deliveries under Waste Hauler contracts declined by 71.3%, Interruptible
Contract and Spot Market deliveries increased by 197.2%.

The Authority’s energy sales decreased by $2,670 (9.9%) from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year
2021. The majority of this decrease is attributed to energy sales within the Property Division
which decreased by $3,271 (24.3%) due to continuing reductions in ISO New England’s capacity
payments for the Authority’s Jet Peaking Units. ISO New England’s capacity payment rate
declined by 24.7%. Energy sales within the Landfill Division, derived from operation of the
Hartford Landfill solar array, declined a modest $6 (4.7%). These reductions were partially
offset by a $606 (4.5%) increase in CSWS energy sales. The CSWS increase was driven by the
price of its Class II Renewable Energy Credits, which increased from eight dollars (§8.00) per
credit in fiscal year 2020 to twelve dollars ($12.00) per credit in fiscal year 2021. While CSWS
electricity generation declined by 8.3% in fiscal year 2021, the price paid for electric generation

increased by 8.9%, which allowed for a very modest 0.1% reduction in CSWS electric
generation revenue.

The Authority’s other operating revenue declined by $541 (13.0%) from fiscal year 2020 to
fiscal year 2021. Other operating revenue associated with the CSWS declined by $450 (12.9%)
while the Property and Landfill divisions combined for a reduction of $91,

The $450 (12.9%) reduction in CSWS other operating revenue is mostly attributable to reduced
recycling revenue within the CSWS. Recycling sales declined by $776 (44.2%) with settlement
of disputes over operation of the CSWS Recycling Facility and the associated transition away
from a revenue sharing contract type. Recycling service charges for delivery of recycling by
non-participating municipalities also decreased by $340 (49.5%). These reductions were
partially offset by a $580 (76.1%) increase in metal sales revenue driven by an 86.0% increase in
the average price the Authority received for its recovered metals, and a $92 (34.1%) increase in
fees for the delivery of bulky waste. CSWS rental and miscellaneous income declined by $6.

The Authority’s member service charges increased by $4,168 (12.4%) from fiscal year 2020 to
fiscal year 2021. All member service charges are associated with operation of the CSWS. The
tip fee paid by all participating municipalities increased by eight dollars ($8.00) per ton effective
July 1, 2020 (commencement of fiscal year 2021).  Total tons of municipal solid waste
(*MSW?”) delivered by participating municipalities increased by 2.5%.

Table 5 also indicates that non-operating revenue increased by $293 (50.9%) from fiscal year
2020 to fiscal year 2021. While fiscal year 2020 non-operating revenue was dominated by $423
in investment income, fiscal year 2021 was dominated by settlement income of $844

representing insurance reimbursement of legal fees associated with operation of the Recycling
Facility.

13



Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

TABLE §

SUMMARY OF OPERATING AND NON-OPERATING REVENUES

Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
(Dollars in Thousands)

2021 2021
Increase/ Percent
(Decrease) Increase/

2020 2020
Increase/  Percent
(Decrease) Increase/

2021 2020 from 2020 (Decrease) 2019 from 2019 (Decrease)
Operating Revenues:
Member service chatges $ 37,753 § 33585 $ 4,168 12.4% $ 31264 § 2321 7.4%
Other service charges 6,153 9,625 (3472)  (36.1%) 9,546 79 0.8%
Energy sales 24,228 26,898 (2,670) (9.9%) 33,399 (6,501)  (19.5%)
Other operating revenues 3,631 4172 (5413 (13.0%) 3,299 873 26.5%
Total Operating Revenues 71,765 74,280 (2515) (3.4%) 77.508 (3,228) (4.2%)
Non-Operating Revenues:
[nvestment income 25 423 (398)  (94.1%) 459 (36) (7.8%)
Settlement income 844 153 691 451.6% 11,619 (11466)  (98.7%)
Other income - - - wa - - n/a
Total Non-Operating Revenues 869 376 193 50.%9% 12078 (11.502)  (95.2%)
Total Revenues $ 72634 $ 74856 S (2,222) (3.0%) % 89586 § (14.730)  (16.4%)
Expenses

Table 6 summarizes total expenses
(operating expenses, depreciation and
amortization, and non-operating
expenses) for the three prior fiscal
years ended June 30, 2021. As
indicated, operating expenses decreased
by $874 (1.2%) from fiscal year 2020
to fiscal year 2021. Depreciation and
amortization increased by $2,036
(16.1%) and non-operating expenses
decreased by $854 (37.0%) during this
same period. Total expenses increased
by $308 (0.3%).

CE s
3y Type (5000)

The $874 (1.2%) decrease in Operating expenses (before depreciation and amortization) reflects
a $466 (3.5%) increase in maintenance and utilities expenses more than offset by a $783 (1.4%) -
reduction in solid waste operations, a $548 (10.8%) reduction in administrative and operational

services and $9 (1.5%) reduction in legal services as described below:

» The $466 (3.5%) increase in maintenance and utilities occurred entirely within the CSWS
where maintenance and utilities expenses increased by $791 (6.1%). The $3,300 accrued
cost to decommission the WTE Facility following suspension of waste combustion
activities is included in this category of expense. Partially offsetting this expense were
reductions to WTE Facility major maintenance activities imposed in response to the
financial impacts of the Covid 19 pandemic and other offsetting reductions driven by the
5.9% reduction in waste delivered to the WTE Facility. Substantial components of the
CSWS WTE Facility reached the end of their useful life on June 30, 2019. This brought

14



Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

an end to the process of capitalizing certain major maintenance activities in the fourth
quarter of fiscal year 2019, effectively increasing maintenance expenses significantly in
fiscal year 2020, Maintenance and utilities associated with the Property Division
declined by $313 (75.8%) and the Landfill Division declined by $12.

The $783 (1.4%) reduction in solid waste operations expense also occurred entirely
within the CSWS where solid waste operations expense declined by $944 (1.8%). Solid
waste operations expense within the Property Division increased by $98 (6.0%) primarily
due to the cost of jet fuel, and Landfill Division expenses increased by $63 (171.6%) due
to pollution insurance premium increases.

The decline in CSWS solid waste operations expense is the net effect of several
significant changes. The nature of operation of the CSWS Recycling Facility changed
from a revenue sharing contract operation to one in which processing fees are paid by the
Authority. This was necessary due to the collapse of recycling commodity markets and
settlement of disputes over the operation of the facility. This resulted in additional
recycling operations expenses of $2,007. The additional $2,156 cost of contractor
severance the Authority committed to provide in order to secure WTE Facility operations
through suspension of waste combustion are also accumulated here. The cost of CSWS
insurance in fiscal year 2021 also increased by $542. Offsetting these increases were
reductions in WTE Facility contract operations expense, ash disposal and other expenses
that can also be traced to the 5.9% decline in waste delivered to the WTE Facility.

The $548 (10.8%) decrease in administrative and operational services expense is centered
within the Landfill Division where these expenses declined by $552 (88.8%). Other
divisions combined for a net increase of $5. The reduction in Landfill Division spending
is directly related to the Authority’s efforts to negotiate a Comprehensive Development
Agreement, including legal, engineering and consulting services, that were incurred in
fiscal year 2020 to provide for the redevelopment of the CSWS consistent with DEEP’s
Resource Rediscovery initiative. These activities were discontinued in fiscal year 2021

when this initiative concluded unsuccessfully. These expenses were funded through the
Landfill Division.

The $9 (1.5%) decrease in legal services is the result of minor reductions in spending
within the CSWS and Landfill Division.

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased by $2,036 (16.1%) from fiscal year 2020 to
fiscal year 2021. The depreciation schedule for the Jet Peaking Units was aligned with the May
31, 2023 expiration of the permit to operate these assets. Additions to the steam turbines and
scheduled completion of depreciation on the WTE Facility’s power block also contributed to this

increase. Initially, substantial components of the WTE Facility reached the end of their useful
life on June 30, 2019,

Non-operating expenses decreased by $854 from fiscal year 2020 to fiscal year 2021. In fiscal
year 2020, non-operating expenses totaled $2,305 and included $1,975 in final distribution of
surplus funds to Mid Connecticut Project participating municipalities, net sales and disposals of

15



Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

assets (write offs) totaling $283, payment of Mid Connecticut Project legal fees and other costs
totaling $47. 1In fiscal year 2021, non-operating expenses primarily represented $1,300 in
- settlement expenses associate with operation of the CSWS Recycling Facility,

TABLE 6
SUMMARY OF OPERATING AND NON-OPERATING EXPENSES
Fiscal Years Ended June 30,
(Doliars in Thousands)

2021 2021 2020 2020
Increase/  Percent Increase/ Percent
(Decrease) Increase/ (Decrease) Increase/
2021 2020 from 2020 (Decrease) 2019 from 2019 (Decrease)
Operating Expenses:
Solid waste operations § 54,161 $ 54944 §  (783) (1.4%) § 59887 § (4,943) (8.3%)
Mamntenance and utilities 13,967 13,501 466 3.5% 2,781 10,720 385.5%
Legal services - external 599 608 C)] (1.5%) 76 532 700.0%
Administrative and operational services 4,526 5,074 (548)  (10.8%) 4,797 2711 5.8%
Total Operating Expenses 73253 74.127 (874) (1.2%) 67,541 6,586 9.8%
Depreciation and amortization 14,669 12,633 2,036 16.1% 39,054 26421}  (67.7%)
Operating Exenses Including Depreciation
and Amortization 87,922 86,760 1,162 1.3% 106,593 (19835  (18.6%)
Non-Operating Expenses:
Settlement expenses 1,300 - 1,300 na - - n/a
Distribution to SCRRRA - - Wa - - n/a
Distribution to Towns 19 1,975 (1956)  (99.0%) 88 1,887  2144.3%
Other expenses 132 330 (198}  (60.0%) 496 (166)  (33.5%)
Total Non-Operating Expenses 1451 2,305 (854)  (37.0%) 584 1,721 294, 7%
Tota! Expenses $ 89373 § 89065 3 308 0.3% $ 107,179 § (18,114)  (16,5%)

16



Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
& Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Capital Assets

The Authority’s investment in FRET Rt o e
capital assets (net of (Netof Accumulated Depreciation)
accumulated depreciation) as of |
June 30, 2021 totaled $31,863.
This represents a $13,734
(30.1%) reduction from net
capital assets as of June 30,
2020 which totaled $45,597.
The Authority’s investment in
capital assets includes land,
plant, equipment and
construction in progress.

The Authority owns land used
for waste management, energy
and related purposes in Bridgeport, Ellington, Hartford, Essex, Shelton, Torrington, Wallingford,
Waterbury and Watertown. Its plants primarily include the WTE Facility in Hartford, four
transfer stations and a recycling facility. Equipment includes vehicles and machinery used in the
Authority’s waste processing and recycling operations. Construction in progress represents
ongoing work for plant and equipment improvements or additions not yet in service. The
substantial decrease in construction in progress reflects the process of no longer capitalizing
certain major maintenance activities conducted within the CSWS Waste to Energy Facility.

The reduction in net capital assets primarily reflects the cumulative effect of additions to
construction in progress, less transfers out of construction in progress (to put assets into service),
less net sales and disposals and depreciation expense as described more fully in Note 3.

Long—Term Debt Issuance, Administration and Credit Ratings

As of June 30, 2021, the Authority had no outstanding long-term debt carried on its books.

17



Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

Economic Factors and Outlook

The most significant economic factors
with the potential to adversely affect
the Authority are its CSWS business
model, the pending loss of surplus
revenue from the Authority’s Jet
Peaking Units used to support the
CSWS business model, the age and
serviceability of the CSWS WTE
Facility —and  the  unsuccessful
conclusion of DEEP’s proposed
redevelopment of the CSWS.

CSWS Business Model

The business model for the CSWS is structured by State statute and municipal service
agreements such that participating town waste disposal fees (“tip fees”) are to be set at the level
necessary to fund the net cost of operation of the CSWS. The net cost of operation is the total
operating budget less non-disposal fee revenue where non-disposal fee revenue primarily
consists of the sale of electricity, recycling activities and disposal fees for waste not contractually
committed to the CSWS (“non-participating towns”). Consequently, price volatility in these
markets directly impacts the tip fees charged to participating towns. Most of the Authority’s

participating town contracts include tip fee caps above which the towns may terminate the
contract (“opt-out tip fee”).

To support the CSWS business model, the Authority established a tip fee stabilization fund
which has been drawn upon to subsidize the CSWS when non-disposal fee revenues are low,
thereby avoiding the opt-out tip fee, and which is to be reimbursed as non-disposal fee revenues
rebound. The tip fee stabilization fund was established within the Authority’s Property Division
primarily with income from its Jet Peaking Units. However, the Authority’s permit to operate
the Jet Peaking Units expires May 31, 2023 under DEEP’s Phased Compliance Program. Jet
Peaking Unit income peaked in fiscal year 2019 at $16,642 and will decline steadily to
approximately $6,700 in fiscal year 2023, their last year of operation. The cash balance of the tip
fee stabilization fund at June 30, 2021 was $1 and a total of $60,163 was reimbursable from the
CSWS contingent upon its future financial performance and availability of surplus funds.

The Authority was successful in establishing tip fees below contractual opt-out provisions from
the inception of the CSWS through adoption of its fiscal year 2017 budget. However, a
sustained erosion of non-disposal fee revenue driven by declining energy pricing and
performance of the WTE Facility caused the adopted tip fee to exceed the opt-out tip fee for
fiscal years 2018 through 2021. During this period the Authority successfully used the tip fee
stabilization fund to limit these increases and no CSWS participating towns opted out of the
contract, effectively preserving organized demand for a potential CSWS redevelopment.
However, with the unsuccessful conclusion of DEEP’s proposed CSWS redevelopment, three

18



Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

towns opted out of the contract upon adoption of a one hundred five dollar ($105.00) municipal
tip fee for fiscal year 2022 (East Hartford, Roxbury and North Branford).

The adopted budget for fiscal year 2022 reflected a fourteen dollar ($14.00) per ton increase in
participating town tip fees as well as continued subsidy from the tip fee stabilization fund.
Property Division income and reserves, substantially attributed to the Jet Peaking Units, will
continue to flow to this fund in fiscal year 2022.

Age and Serviceability of the CSWS Waste to Energy Facility

Substantial components of the WTE Facility reached the scheduled end of their useful life on
June 30, 2019 and are fully depreciated. Remaining components have since been fully
depreciated. The facility’s age and serviceability is readily apparent in its fiscal year 2021
performance trends. In fiscal year 2021, the WTE Facility’s average monthly combined boiler
availability was 60.0% meaning that, on average, each of the facility’s three boilers were
unavailable 40.0% of the time due to equipment failure and major maintenance requirements,
There are also increasing occasions where reduced waste flow, caused by economic contraction
and increased tip fees, also prompted boiler unavailability. During fiscal year 2021 the WTE
Facility received 488,285 tons of MSW delivered under municipal and hauler contracts, a 30,677
ton (5.9%) reduction in deliveries from fiscal year 2020. In fiscal year 2021, the facility
generated 250.08 million kilowatt hours of energy, a 22.58 million kilowatt hour (8.3%)
reduction from fiscal year 2020.

Unsuccessful Conclusion of DEEP’s Proposed Redevelopment of CSWS

In fiscal year 2014, the State passed Public Act 14-94 (the “Act”) forming the Authority and
designating it as successor to the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority (CRRA). One of
the core objectives of the Act was to set a process in motion, with specific roles and deadlines for
the Authority, DEEP and the private sector that would bring about the redevelopment of the
CSWS. Major milestones included completion of a two-phase Request for Proposals (RFP)
process, legislative reports and public hearings culminating in DEEP’s selection of a preferred
proposal and its December 31, 2017 direction to the Authority to enter into an agreement for the
redevelopment of the CSWS with its selected respondent (the Sacyr Rooney Recovery Team,
LLC or “SRRT”). The original SRRT proposal represented a $222 million investment in the
refurbishment of the WTE Facility together with the incorporation of new “Diversion
Technology” which would include new mechanical and biological treatment facilities and an
aerobic digester and be provided at a reduced tip fee. DEEP’s initial objective was that a
contract providing for the redevelopment be executed by July 1, 2018. The redeveloped CSWS
was expected to commence operations by July 1, 2023.

During fiscal years 2018 and 2019, the Authority actively engaged in negotiations with SRRT
aimed at bringing the proposed redevelopment project to fruition in a manner consistent with its
municipal service agreements, the contracting requirements of its enabling legislation, relevant
provisions of the Act and DEEP’s RFP. Key topics addressed included financial feasibility,
project structuring, governance and risk allocation, disposition and use of surplus revenue and
municipal tip fees. The discussions culminated at the close of fiscal year 2019 with agreement

19



Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

on a Memorandum of Understanding outlining the roles and responsibilities of each party for
each of these areas. The MOU also established a November 15, 2019 deadline for the execution
of a fully developed term sheet, and an October 15, 2020 deadline for execution of a
Comprehensive Development Agreement.

During fiscal year 2020, the Authority and SRRT completed additional due diligence and
executed a fully developed term sheet consistent with the MOU which included detailed
financial and demand forecasts as well as the tipping fees required to support the project. The
term sheet called for a one hundred forty five dollar ($145) per ton tip fee upon completion of
construction and annual escalation thereafter. Upon execution of the term sheet, the Authority
actively sought to secure long term municipal waste commitments reflecting the required tipping
fees. These efforts included statewide, regional and individual municipal presentations and
surveys setting forth the municipal commitments and tip fees necessary to finance the Project.
The Authority was not successful in securing these commitments as the tipping fee was
considered too high and length of commitment to the project too long. The Authority then
sought additional support for the project from the State in the form of energy price support, State
bond support or demand support (through “flow control”). The Authority drafted and
aggressively pursued proposed legislation in each of these areas. The Authority advised SRRT
that, in the absence of such State support, the project was not viable and the Authority would
withdraw from further negotiations and terminate the Term Sheet.

Early in fiscal year 2021, the State formally rejected any such support. Accordingly, the
Authority withdrew from further negotiations and terminated the term sheet. To ensure the
continuance of waste management services to its CSWS participating municipalities, the
Authority also immediately issued an REP for operation and potential redevelopment of the
CSWS Recycling Facility and commenced planning and contracting activities necessary fo
suspend waste combustion and transition the WTE Facility to a more reliable waste transfer
operation. The current status of these initiatives is summarized below:

e The Authority has concluded its RFP process for the CSWS Recycling Facility and entered
into a contract with Murphy Road Recycling to operate it as a recycling transfer facility
etfective from May 1, 2021 through the June 30, 2027 expiration of the CSWS Municipal
Service Agreements.

» The Authority issued two RFPs for the transportation and disposal of four hundred and thirty
thousand (430,000) tons of municipal solid waste annually commencing as early as January
1, 2022 and ending June 30, 2027. The RFPs were issued May 14, 2021. One RFP was
targeted at other regional waste to energy or transfer facilities and the other was targeted at
out of state landfills. Proposals were received August 25, 2021 and are being evaluated,

e The Authority issued an RFP for the operation, maintenance and optional future development
of CSWS Transfer Facilities on June 16, 2021. This RFP envisions the suspension of waste
combustion and commencement of transfer operations in Hartford effective July 1, 2022.
Proposals are due September 20, 2021 and will be evaluated upon receipt.

20



Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority’s finances for all
those with an interest in the Authority’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to the Chief
Financial Officer, 200 Corporate Place, Rocky Hill CT 06067.

21



MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2021 AND JUNE 30, 2020

(Dollars in Thousands)

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Unrestricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net of allowances
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Total Unrestricted Assets

Restricted Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Capital Assets:
Depreciable, net
Nondepreciable

Total Capital Assets

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

EXHIBIT I
Page 1 of 2
2021 2020

33,199 § 31,991
7,595 6,958
5,572 5,833
2,729 2,430
49,095 47,212
1,103 230
56,198 47,442
5,581 18,746
26,282 26,851
31,863 45,597
31,863 45,597
82,061 93,039

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these {inancial statements

2



MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY EXHIBIT ¥
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut Page 2 of 2
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION (Continued)
AS OF JUNE 30, 2021 AND JUNE 30, 2020
(Dollars in Thousands)

2021 2020
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payable from Unrestricted Assets:

Accounts payable $ 1,390 $ 1,973

Acccrued expenses and other current labilities 8,801 3,330

Unearned revenue 38 38

Total Payable from Unrestricted Assets 10,229 5,341
Payable from Restricted Assets:

Accerued expenses and other current lHabilities 1,052 179
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 11,281 5,520
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Payable from Unrestricted Assets:

Other liabilities - -

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES 11,281 5,520
NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 31,863 45,597
Restricted 51 51
Unrestricted 38,866 41,871
TOTAL NET POSITION $ 70,780 $ 87,519

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

23



MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY EXHIBIT 11
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND
CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020
(Dollars in Thousands)
2021 2020

Operating Revenues

Service charges:

Members $ 37,753 $ 33,585
Others 6,153 9,625

Energy sales 24,228 26,898

Other 3,631 4,172
Total Operating Revenues 71,765 74,280
Operating Expenses

Solid waste operations 54,161 54,944

Maintenance and utilities 13,967 13,501

Legal services - external 599 608

Administrative and Operational services 4,526 5,074
Total Operating Expenses 73,253 74,127
Operating Income before depreciation and amortization (1,488) 153

Depreciation and amortization 14,669 12,633
Operating Loss (16,157) (12,480}
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)

Investment income 25 423

Settlement income 844 153

Settlement expenses, net (1,300) (1,975)

Distributions to towns (19) -

Other revenues (expenses), het (132) (330)
Total Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses), Net (582) (1,729)
Change in Net Position (16,739 (14,209)
Total Net Position, beginning of year 87,519 101,728
Total Net Position, end of year $ 70,780 5 87,519

/

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

24



MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY

A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020
(Dollars in Thousands)

Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities
Payments received from providing services 8
Payments to suppliers and employees
Distributions to towns
Settlement income (expenses)

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows Provided by Investing Activities
Interest on investments

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Capital and Related Financing Activities
Proceeds from sales of equipment
Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Net Cash Used in Capital and Related Financing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year $

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash Provided
by Operating Activities:
Operating loss $
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss
to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation of capital assets
Other income {(expenses), net
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of transfers:
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable, net
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
[ncrease (decrease) in:
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $

EXHIBIT III
2021 2020
71,129 $ 77,624
(67,531) (73,547)
23) (1,975)
(456) 153
3,119 2,255
25 423
25 423
UR .
(1,062) (1,835)
(1,063) (1,835)
2,081 843
32,221 31,378
34,302 $ 32,221
(16,157) $ (12,480)
14,669 12,633
479) (1,822)
(636) 4,125
261 (54)
(299} 57
5,760 (204)
3,119 $ 2,255

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

25



Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
R Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

This document is printed on recycled content paper

26



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

1.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Entity and Services

The Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority (the “Authority”) was created by the State of
Connecticut (the “State”) under Public Act 14-94 (the “Act”). The Authority constitutes a successor
authority to the Connecticut Resources Recovety Authority (“CRRA”) which was created in 1973 under
Chapter 446e of the State Statutes. The Authority is a public instrumentality and political subdivision of
the State and is included as a component unit in the State’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

The Authority became CRRA’s successor effective June 6, 2014 when it assumed control over all of
CRRA’s assets, rights, duties and obligations and continued CRRA’s ongoing business. The Act and

related statutes outlined below specified the transfer of responsibilities from CRRA to the Authority in a
manner that assured continuity.

» The Authority’s designation as CRRA’s successor did not represent a grant of new authority by
the State. The Authority replaced CRRA and CRRA no longer exists;

* Any effective orders or regulations of CRRA remain effective under the governance of the
Authority;

¢ To the extent that CRRA was a party to any action or proceeding (civil or criminal), the
Authority was substituted for CRRA in that action or proceeding;

* Any contract, right of action or matter undertaken or commenced by CRRA is now being
undertaken and completed by the Authority;

* The officers and employees of CRRA have been transferred to the Authority; and

* Al property of CRRA was delivered to the Authority.

The Authority is authorized to have a board consisting of eleven directors and two ad-hoc members from
each municipality that is the site of an Authority facility. The Governor appoints three directors and all
ad-hoc members. The remaining eight directors are appointed by various state legislative leaders. Five of
the directors are required by statute to be municipal officials, two from municipalities with populations
of more than fifty-thousand, and three from municipalities with populations of fifty-thousand or less. All
appointments require the advice and consent of both houses of the General Assembly. During fiscal year

2021, the Authority’s board included officials from seven municipalities that receive solid waste disposal
services from the Authority.

In addition, the statutory structure of the Authority, which is a component unit of the State of
Connecticut, and of the Authority’s board, which includes representatives of municipalities and

customers served by the Authority, results in transactions with related parties and related organizations
that occur in the ordinary course of operations.

27



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A. Entity and Services (Continued)

The State Treasurer continues to approve the issuance of all Authority bonds and notes. The State has
been contingently liable to restore deficiencies in debt service reserves established for certain Authority
bonds. However, with maturity of the Authority’s 2010 Series A Southeast Project Refunding Bonds on

November 15, 2015, there is no longer any contingent Hability of the State associated with the Authority.
The Authority has no taxing power.

Under the Act, the Authority’s purpose continues to be the planning, design, construction, financing,
management, ownership, operation and maintenance of solid waste disposal, volume’ reduction,
recycling, intermediate processing, resource recovery and related support facilities necessary to carry out
the State’s Solid Waste Management Plan. The Authority continues to provide solid waste management
services to municipalities, regions and persons within the State by receiving solid wastes at Authority
facilities, recovering resources from such solid wastes, and generating revenues from such services
sufficient for the Authority to operate on a self-sustaining basis.

The Act established a new consultative partnership between the Authority and the State’s Department of
Energy and Environmental Protection (“DEEP™), specifically for redevelopment of the Authority’s
Connecticut Solid Waste System (“CSWS”) described below, which concluded unsuccessfully in fiscal
year 2021, and generally for the development of new waste management industries, technologies and
commercial enterprises on property owned by the Authority. The Act charged DEEP with revising the
State’s solid waste management plan and undertaking these consultative efforts consistent with the
revised plan. The Act also transferred responsibility for statewide recycling education to a newly created
“Recycle CT Foundation”. The Authority ceased providing educational facilities and services to its
customers as of June 30, 2016.

CRRA’s original core mission was to develop a network of resource recovery and related facilities within
the State to move the State away from the process of landfilling its municipal solid waste. Facilities were
constructed in Preston, Hartford, Bridgeport and Wallingford, Connecticut, which have historically been
known as the Southeast, Mid Connecticut, Bridgeport and Wallingford projects, respectively. CRRA
secured financing, facility developer, operator and customer contracts, and administered these projects
throughout their various stages over the last four decades. While the initial underlying contracts for the
Southeast Project remained in effect at the time the Authority was created, the Authority fully concluded
its role in the Southeast Project during fiscal year 2018. Underlying contracts for the Mid Connecticut,
Bridgeport and Wallingford projects had previously expired and resulted in a distribution and/or
reformation of project assets which formed the foundation for CRRA’s core project / division and
financial structure at the time of assumption by the Authority. The Authority continues to recognize
CRRA’s projects / divisions and financial structure outlined below,

Mid Connecticut Project and _the Connecticut Solid Waste System - CRRA retained title to the
resource recovery facility in Hartford (South Meadows), all support facilities and land when the initial
underlying project contracts expired for the Mid Connecticut Project on November 15, 2012. No property
transferred to the private sector. CRRA assigned these assets to its Property Division and put them into
service in the form of the Connecticut Solid Waste System. Assets in service to the CSWS include the
resource recovery facility, four transfer stations and a major recycling facility. During Fiscal Year 2021

28



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

A. Entity and Services (Continued)

CSWS provided solid waste disposal services to 52 Connecticut municipalities and 37 private waste
haulers under contract with the Authority.

The CSWS is the primary operating division of the Authority and is the only publicly owned, fully
controlled waste disposal system in the State. All operating revenues and expenses of the CSWS, other
than depreciation and amortization of assets, are assigned to the CSWS division. Prior Mid Connecticut
Project assets not in service to the CSWS include the now closed Education and Trash Museum and
certain jet turbine powered electric generating peaking units. All revenues and expenses associated with
the assets not in service to CSWS are assigned to the Property Division. The Mid Connecticut Project
remains active administratively only for project close out activities including application of approved
project distributions to current CSWS customer accounts.

Property Division - All Capital Assets retained by CRRA upon expiration of the Mid Connecticut and
Bridgeport projects other than those associated with landfills have been assigned to this division, The
division derives operating income primarily from the lease of property and the sale of jet turbine electric
generating capacity in various ISO New England energy markets.  The Authority has assumed CRRA’s

interests and obligations in the Property Division and reports this activity consistent with the structure
noted above.

Landfill Division - As of June 6, 2014, the Authority assumed CRRA’s ownership interests in three
closed landfills in the State, and certain adjoining properties, which have been assigned to the Landfill
Division. Certain plant and equipment installations associated with these landfills, and the leased
Hartford landfill, were also assigned to this division. The Authority has also assumed CRRA’s interests
and obligations pursuant to State statute and agreement with DEEP concerning the transfer of CRRA’s
landfill post closure care obligations to DEEP and the transfer of funds reserved for post closure care
activities to the State. See Note 4 for additional information.

During fiscal year 2016 the Authority’s lease and subsequent Short Term Access Agreement for the
Hartford Landfill expired resulting in the transfer of associated plant and equipment to the City of
Hartford. Ownership of the solar array installed by the Authority on top of the Hartford landfill remains
with the Authority subject to a new Long Term Site Access and Revenue Sharing Agreement with the
City of Hartford. The Authority’s financial interests and activities concerning this solar array are
recognized within the Landfill Division,

B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of Presentation

The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of Ametica (“GAAP”) as applied to government entities, The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

The Authority is considered to be an Enterprise Fund. The Authority’s activities are accounted for using
a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, net position, revenues, and
expenses.

29



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Enterprise funds are established to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner
similar to private business enterprises, where the intent is that the costs of providing goods or services on
a continuing basis are financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

The Authority’s financial statements are prepared using an economic resources measurement focus and

the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when
incurred,

The Authority distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the disposal of solid
waste. The principal operating revenues of the Authority are charges to customers for user services and
sales of electricity including energy generation and participation in forward capacity and reserve markets
managed by ISO New England. Operating expenses include the cost of solid waste operations,
maintenance and utilities, administrative expenses, rebates and distribution of funds associated with
active Authority projects and divisions (CSWS, Property and Landfill divisions) and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating
revenues and expenses including distribution of funds associated with the closeout of inactive projects.

C. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the balance sheets and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Such estimates are subsequently revised as deemed necessary
when additional information becomes available, Actual results could differ from those estimates.

D. Cash and Cash Equivalents

All unrestricted and restricted highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when
purchased are considered to be cash equivalents,

30



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Compornent Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

FE. Receivables, Net

Receivables are shown net of an allowance for the estimated portion that is not expected to be collected.
The Authority performs ongoing credit evaluations and generally requires a guarantee of payment form
of collateral from non-municipalities. The Authority has established an allowance for the estimated
portion that is not expected to be collected of $54,285 and $48,900 at June 30, 2021 and 2020
respectively.

Fiscal Year
2021 2020
Receivables, net of allowances (3000) (3000)
Payroll Adjustment $ 1 $ -
Leases 2 9
Contractor 353 11
Insurance - 152
Electricity 1,390 1,319
Disposal & Commodity Sales 5.849 5,467
Total $ 7,59 $ 6,958

F. Inventory

The Authority’s spare parts inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value using the
weighted-average costing method. The Authority’s fuel inventory is stated at the lower of cost or net
realizable value using a first-in first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories at June 30, 2021 and 2020 are
summarized as follows:

Fiscal Year
Inventories 2021 2020
($000) (8000)
Spare Parts $ 5,300 $ 5,184
Fuel 272 649
Total k) 5,572 3 5,833

31



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

G. Investments

Investments are reported at fair value (generally based on quoted market prices), except for investments
in certain external investment pools that are permitted to be reported at the net asset value per share as
determined by the pool. Interest on investments is recorded as revenue in the year the interest is earned.

H. Restricted Assets

Restricted assets consists of cash and cash equivalents restricted for use by enabling legislation or by
externally imposed restrictions by creditors, grantors or laws and regulations. MIRA’s restricted assets
consist of customer guarantees of payment and trust—pooled funds.

1. Development Costs

Costs incurred during the development stage of an Authority project, including, but not limited to, initial
planning and permitting are capitalized. When the project begins commercial operation, the development
costs are amortized using the straight-line method over the estimated life of the project. Costs incurred
during the preliminary project states, including certain legal fees, are expensed as incurred.

The Authority has no unamortized development costs that have been capitalized as of June 30, 2021 and
2020,

J. Capital Assets

Capital assets with a useful life in excess of one year are capitalized at historical cost. Depreciation of
exhaustible capital assets is charged as an expense against operations, Depreciation is charged over the

estimated useful life of the asset using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives of capital
assets are as follows:

Capital Assets Years
Resources Recovery Buildings 30
Other Buildings 20
Resources Recovery Equipment 30
Gas and Steam Turbines 10-20
Recycling Equipment 10
Rolling Stock and Automobiles S
Office and Other Equipment 3-5
Roadways 20

32



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Cormaponent Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

J. Capital Assets (Continued)

The Authority’s capitalization threshold for property, plant, and equipment is $5,000 and for office
turniture and equipment is $1,000. Improvements, renewals, and significant repairs that extend the useful
life of a capital asset are capitalized; other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred. When
capital assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the related asset and accumulated depreciation is
written off and any related gains or losses are recorded.

The Authority reviews its capital assets used in operations for impairment when prominent events or
changes in circumstances that may be indicative of impairment of a capital asset has occurred. The
Authority records impairment losses and reduces the carrying value of a capital asset when both the
decline in service utility of the capital asset is large in magnitude and the event or a change in
circumstances is outside the normal life cycle of the capital asset. During the years ended June 30, 2021
and 2020, no impairment losses were recognized. Substantial components of the Connecticut Solid
Waste System’s waste to energy facility reached the end of their useful life on June 30, 2019 and have
been fully depreciated. The facility remains in operation and the Authority is contractually committed to
process waste for the Connecticut municipalities through June 30, 2027,

Construction in progress includes all associated cumulative costs of a constructed capital asset and
deposits held by third parties for capital purchases. Construction in progress is relieved at the point at
which an asset is placed in service for ifs intended use.

K. Compensated Absences

The Authority’s liability for vested accumulated unpaid vacation and personal amounts is included in
accrued expenses and other current liabilities in the accompanying statements of net position. The
liability for compensated absences at June 30, 2021 and 2020 and the related changes for the years ended
June 30, 2021 and 2020 are presented in the following table. Compensated absences include accruals for

salaries, employer taxes, employer’s 401K retirement plan contributions and employer’s matching
contributions:

Balance at Balance at Balance at

July 1, Increases June 30, Increases June 30,

Compensated Absences 2019 (Decreases) 2020 (Decreases) 2021
($000) {35000} ($000) (5000 (3000)

Accrued vacation and personal time ~ § 516§ 89 $ 605 % 9 $ 614
Total $ 516§ 89 $ 605 § 9 $ 614




Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
K. Compensated Absences (Continued)

Compensated absences do not include estimates of the Authority’s liability pursuant to its severance
policies applicable in the event of any employee separation without cause as a result of position
elimination, reorganization, restructuring and reduction in force.

“

L. Net Position
The Authority’s net position is reported in one of the following three components:

Net investment in capital assets, consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced
by the outstanding balances of bonds that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets. Net investment in capital assets totaled approximately $31.9 million and
$45.6 million as of June 30, 2021 and 2020,

Restricted net position, consists of the portion of net position that has been either restricted by enabling
legislation or that contain various externally imposed restrictions by creditors, grantors or laws and
regulations. Restricted net position totaled approximately $51,000 and $51,000 as of June 30, 2021 and
2020, respectively. None of the Authority’s net position has been restricted by enabling legislation.

Unrestricted net position, consists of the portion of net position not included in the other components of
net position and has been divided into designated and undesignated portions. Designated net position
represent the Authority’s self-imposed limitations on the use of otherwise unrestricted net position.
Unrestricted net position has been designated by the Board of Directors of the Authority for various

purposes. Such designations totaled approximately $19.2 million and $24.0 million as of June 30, 2021
and 2020, respectively.

34



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
L. Net Position (Continued)

Unrestricted net position at June 30, 2021 and 2020 are summarized as follows:

Unrestricted Net Position 2021 2020
($000) ($000)
Undesignated $ 19,674 $ 17,829
Designated:
Authority:
Severance Fund 2,541 2,479

Property Division:

General Fund 11,064 14,193
Improvement Fund- PD 260 234
Improvement Fund - CSWS 219 465
Tip fee stabiliztion 1 1,885
Jets major maintanence 964 1,153

Mid-Connecticut:

Post project closure - 23
CSWS:
Debt Service Fund 4 4
Future Loss Contingencies 897 896
General Fund 1 1
Legal Fund 639 638
CSW S Major Maintenance 2,267 1,548
Landfill Division:
Hartford solar reserve 335 335
Pollution insurance reserve - 188
19,192 24,042
Total Unrestricted Net Position $ 38,806 $ 41,871

35



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

2. CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following as of June 30, 2021 and 2020:

2021 2020
Cash and Cash Equivalents ($000) (5000)
Unrestricted:
Cash deposits $ 8690 $ 5591
Cash equivalents:
STIF * 24,509 26,400
33,199 31,991
Restricted ~ current:
Cash deposits 1,103 230
Cash equivalents:
STIF * - -
1,103 230
Total $ 34302 $ 32,221

* STTF = Short-Term Investment Fund of the State of Connecticut

Cash Deposits — Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Authority will not be able to

recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the possession of an
outside party.

36



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020
2. CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Cash Deposits — Custodial Credit Risk (Continued)

As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, approximately $9.5 million and $5.5 million, respectively, of the
Authority’s bank balance of cash deposits were exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:

2021 2020
Custodial Credit Risks ($000) ($000)
Uninsured but collateralized
with securities held by the
pledging bank’s trust
department or agent but not in
the Authority’s name $ 1413 $ 810
Uninsured and Uncollateralized 8,079 4,708
Total $ 9492 $5,518

Total represents uninsured Bank of America account balance as
of 6/30/21. Uninsured but collateralized equals 14.51% of total
per Bank of America reporting.

Balance represents uninsured and uncollateralized.

All of the Authority’s deposits were in qualified public institutions as defined by State statute. Under
this statute, any bank holding public deposits must at all times maintain, segregated from other assets,
eligible collateral in an amount equal to a certain percentage of its public deposits. The applicable
percentage is determined based on the bank’s risk-based capital ratio. The amount of public deposits is
determined based on either the public deposits reported on the most recent quarterly call report, or the
average of the public deposits reported on the four most recent quarterly call reports, whichever is
greater. The collateral is kept in the custody of the trust department of either the pledging bank or
another bank in the name of the pledging bank.

Investments

Investments in the State of Connecticut Short-Term Investment Fund (“STIF”) as of June 30, 2021 and
2020 are included in cash and cash equivalents in the accompanying statements of net position. For

purposes of disclosure, such amounts are considered investments and have been included in the
investment disclosures that follow.

37



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

2. CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk

As of June 30, 2021, the Authority’s investments consisted of the following debt securities:
Investment Maturities

(In Years)
Investment Net Asset Less More
Type Value than lto 6t than
{$000) 1 5 10 10
STIF $ 24509 $ 24509 $ - § - § -
Total $ 24509 $ 24509 § - § - § -

As of June 30, 2020, the Authority’s investments consisted of the following debt securitios:
Investment Maturities

(In Years)
Investment Net Asset Less More
Type Value than lto 6to than
(5000} 1 5 10 10
STIF $ 26400 $ 26400 $ - $ - § -
Total $26400 $ 26400 $ - $ - § -

STIF is an investment pool of short-term money market instruments that may include adjustable-rate
federal agency and foreign government securities whose interest rates vary directly with short-term
money market indices and are generally reset daily, monthly, quarterly, and semi-annually. The
adjustable-rate securities have similar exposures to credit and legal risks as fixed-rate securities from the
same issuers. The fair value of the position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.

As of June 30, 2021 and 2020, STIF had a weighted average maturity of 31 and 16 days respectively.

The Authority’s investment policy does not limit investment maturities as a means of managing its
exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. The Authority is limited to
investment maturities as required by specific bond resolutions or as needed for immediate use or
disbursement. Those funds not included in the foregoing may be invested in longer-term securities as
authorized in the Authority’s investment policy. The primary objectives of the Authority’s investment
policy are the preservation of principal and the maintenance of liquidity.

38



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
. JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

2. CASH DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
Investments (Continued)

Credit Risk

Connecticut state statutes permit the Authority to invest in obligations of the United States, including its
instrumentalities and agencies; in obligations of any state or of any political subdivision, authority or
agency thereof, provided such obligations are rated within one of the top two rating categories of any
recognized rating service; or in obligations of the State of Connecticut or of any political subdivision

thereof, provided such obligations are rated within one of the top three rating categories of any
recognized rating service.

As of June 30, 2021, the Authority’s investments were rated as follows:

Fair Moody's
Security Value  Standard Investor Fitch
($000) & Poor's  Service  Ratings
Not Not
STIF $ 24509 AAAm Rated Rated

As of June 30, 2020, the Authority’s investments were rated as follows:

Fair Moody's
Security Value  Standard Investor Fitch
(8000) & Poor's  Service  Ratings
Not Not
STIF $ 26400 AAAm  Rated Rated

Custodial Credir Risk

For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the
Authority will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The Authority’s investment policy does not include provisions for
custodial credit risk, as the Authority does not invest in securities that are held by counterparties. None
of the Authority’s investments require custodial credit risk disclosures. STIF is not subject to regulatory
oversight nor is it registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission as an investment company.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Authority’s investment policy places no limit on the amount of investment in any one issuer, but
does require diversity of the investment portfolio if investments are made in non-U.S. government or
U.S. agency securities to eliminate the risk of loss of over-concentration of assets in a specific class of
security, a specific maturity and/or a specific issuer. The asset allocation of the investment portfolio
should, however, be flexible enough to assure adequate liquidity for Authority needs. As of June 30,
2021 and 2020, all of the Authority’s investments are in STIF, which is rated in the highest rating

category by Standard & Poor’s and provides daily liquidity, thereby satisfying the primary objectives of
the Authority’s investment policy.

39



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

3. CAPITAL ASSETS

A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020:

Depreciable assets:
Plant
Equipment
Total at cost

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Plant
Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total depreciable assets, net

Nondepreciable assets:
Land
Construction-in-progress
Total nondepreciable assets

Total depreciable and
nondepreciable assets

Depreciable assets:
Plant
Equipment
Total at cost

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Plant
Equipment
Total accumulated depreciation
Total depreciable assets, net

Nendepreciable assets:
Land
Construction-in-progress
Total pondepreciabte assets

Total depreciable and
nondepreciable assets

Balance at Sales and Balance at
June 30,2020 Additions Transfers Disposals June 30,2021
{($009) (3000) ($000) (3000) (3000)

$ 213,616 $ - $ - 5 $ 213,616

248,215 6 1,631 (560) 249,292

461,831 6 1,631 (560) 462,908
(212,831) (498) - - (213,329)
(230,254) (14,169) 425 (243,998)
(443,085) (14,667) - 425 (457,327)

18,746 (14,661) 1,631 (135) 5,581

26,239 - - - 26,239

612 1,062 (1,631) - 43

26,851 1,062 (1,631) - 26,282

3 45,597 $ (13,599 § - $ (135) $ 31,863

Balance at Sales and Balance at
June 30,2019 Additions Transfers Disposals June 30,2020
($000) (5000) ($000) ($000) (3000)

$ 213,605 $ - $ 43 b 32) $ 213,616
246,530 7 5,724 (4,046) 3% 248,215

460,135 7 5,767 (4,078) 461,831
(211,861) (989) 19 (212,831)
(222,385) {11,645} - 3,776 {230,254)
(434,246) (12,634) - 3,795 (443,085)
25,889 (12,627) 5,767 (283) 18,746

26,239 - - - 26,239

4,544 1,835 (5,767) 612

30,783 1,835 (5,767) - 26,851

S 56,672 $ {0,792y 8 - 3 (283) % 45,597

40



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

4. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES FOR CLOSURE AND POST-CLOSURE CARE OF
LANDFILLS

The Authority has historically operated five landfills located within the State. Three landfills (located in

Ellington, Waterbury and Shelton) are owned in fee simple by the Authority and two landfills (located in
Hartford and Wallingford) were leased by the Authority.

Federal, State and local regulations required the Authority to place final cover on its landfills when it
stopped accepting waste at them (closure obfigations), and to perform certain maintenance and
monitoring functions for periods that may extend thirty years afier closure (post closure obligations).
Accordingly, the Authority has previously estimated its lability for closure and post-closure care costs
and recorded any increases or decreases to the liability as an operating expense,

During the year ended June 30, 2014, pursuant to the State of Connecticut’s Public Act 13-247 and
Section 99 of Public Act 13-184, the Authority transferred $35.8 million in post closure care obligations
for all of its landfills to the State’s Department of Energy and Environmental Protection (DEEP) and
concurrently transferred $31.0 million of its landfill reserve accounts and trust funds to the State’s
General Fund. The Authority’s closure obligation for the Hartford landfill was not transferred to DEEP.
As of June 30, 2014, all five of the Authority’s landfills had no capacity available since 100% of their

capacity had been used, and all landfills other than Hartford had been closed in compliance with
applicable Federal, State and local regulations.

During the year ended June 30, 2015, the Authority completed closure of the Hartford landfill in
compliance with applicable Federal, State and local regulations. Accordingly, the Authority no longer
includes liabilities associated with the post closure or closure care of any Authority landfills as these

obligations were either assumed by DEEP during the year ended June 30, 2014 or have been completed
by the Authority, ‘

There were no capital assets transferred pursuant to these statutes. While the Authority retains fee
simple ownership of the Ellington, Waterbury and Shelton landfills and related assets, the associated post
closure care obligations have been assumed by DEEP. The Hartford landfill lease expired during the
year ended June 30, 2015 (upon completion of the Authority’s closure obligations) and its surviving post
closure care obligations have been assumed by DEEP. The Wallingford Landfill lease previously
expired and its surviving post closure care obligations have been assumed by DEEP.

The Authority had no liabilities for landfill closure and post-closure care of landfills as of June 30, 2021
and 2020.

5. MAJOR CUSTOMERS
Nextera Energy Power Marketing is the Authority’s customer for fixed price (hedged) energy sales and

certain Class II renewable energy credits from the Connecticut Solid Waste System (CSWS) and

represented 4.5% and 9.2% of total operating revenues for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

41



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

5. MAJOR CUSTOMERS (Continued)

ISO New England is the Authority’s customer for non-hedged energy sales, as well as forward capacity
and reserve market sales, from the Connecticut Solid Waste System and the Property Divisions Peaking

Units and represented 29.1% and 26.9% of total operating revenues for the years ended June 30, 2021
and 2020, respectively.

Nextera Energy Power Marketing also acts as the Authority’s designated Lead Market Participant and
Generation Asset Owner for ISO New England to provide scheduling, bidding and marketing services
with respect to all CSWS and Property Division energy described above.

Service charge revenues from All Waste, Inc. totaled 12.4% and 13.0% of the Authority’s operating
revenues for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

6. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

The Authority is the Administrator of its 401(k) Employee Savings Plan. This defined contribution
retirement plan covers all eligible employees.

Under the Amended and Restated 401(k) Employee Savings Plan, effective July 1, 2000, Authority
contributions are five percent of payroll plus a dollar for dolfar match of employees’ contributions up to
five percent of employee wages. Authority contributions for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020
amounted to approximately $291,000 and $288,000, respectively. Employees contributed approximately

$293.000 to the plan during the year ended June 30, 2021 and $273,000 to the plan during the year ended
June 30, 2020,

In addition, the Authority is a participating employer in the State of Connecticut’s defined contribution
457(b) Plan, which allows Authority employees to participate in the State of Connecticut’s deferred
compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457, All amounts of
compensation deferred under the 457(b) plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and
all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are held in trust for the exclusive benefit of
the plan participants and their beneficiaries. The Authority holds no fiduciary responsibility for the plan;
rather, fiduciary responsibility rests with the State Comptroller’s office.

The Authority has no other post-employment benefit plans as of June 30, 2021 and 2020.

7. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority is exposed to various risks of loss. The Authority endeavors to purchase commercial
insurance for all insurable risks of loss that can be done so at reasonable expense. This includes
insurance coverage for property, general liability, pollution, auto, umbrella, workers comp, public
officials, crime and fiduciary. The CSWS waste-to-energy facility has historically been the Authority’s
highest valued single facility. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the

past three (3) fiscal years. However, there have been significant reductions in insurance coverage from
the prior three years.

42



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

7.  RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

During fiscal year 2019 the Authority sustained property damage to its two steam turbines associated
with operation of the CSWS Waste to Energy Facility and recognized insurance proceeds of $11.6
million from related business interruption, extra expense and property damage insurance coverages. The
amounts were reported as settlement income for the year ended June 30, 2019. As a result of these
claims, certain deductibles increased effective January 1, 2019. The Authority’s business interruption
and extra expense deductible period on these turbines was extended from 45 days to 75 days by insurance
carriers providing fifty percent (50%) of this coverage. An additional insurance carrier providing fifteen
percent (15%) of the business interruption and extra expense coverage on these turbines extended the
deductible period from 45 days to 60 days. Property damage deductibles on these turbines were
increased from $250,000 to $3 million by insurance cartiers providing fifty percent (50%) of this
coverage. An additional insurance carrier providing fifteen percent (15%) of this coverage increased the
deductible from $250,000 to $1.5 million. Property damage deductibles on the Authority’s Jet Peaking
Units were also increased effective January 1, 2019. This deductible was increased from $250,000 to
$1.0 million by insurance carriers providing fifty percent (50%) of this coverage, and from $250,000 to
$1.5 million by insurance carriers providing fifteen percent (15%) of this coverage.

During fiscal year 2020, due to the Authority’s prior claims, and the insurance industry’s increased
reluctance to accept the risk profile of waste to energy facilities generally, the Authority was unable to
renew its property damage coverage as initially modified in response to the steam turbine claims noted
above. A prominent insurance carrier that historically held 50% of the Authority’s property damage
coverage declined to renew at all and had to be replaced by multiple carriers in a tiered coverage
approach. The Authority was forced to eliminate business interruption and extra expense, and increase
its deductibles to $10 million, as part of it efforts to secure continued property damage coverage. These
changes were effective January 1, 2020. As of January 1, 2020, the Authority possesses approximately
94% coverage for a total loss pursuant to this tiered approach subject to these deductibles and excluding
business interruption and extra expense. The percentage of coverage varies based on the amount of claim
from a low of approximately 80% to a high of 100%.

This structure for the Authority’s property insurance was maintained in place through expiration in
March 2021. However, during fiscal year 2021, the property insurance market for waste to energy
facilities worsened, DEEP’s Resource Rediscovery initiative to redevelop the CSWS Waste to Energy
Facility concluded unsuccessfully, prompting the Authority to commence planning and contracting
activity to transition to waste transfer operations, and the CSWS Recycling Facility was converted into a
recycling transfer operation. Accordingly, effective March 30, 2021 through July 1, 2022 the Authority
renewed property insurance for the CSWS transfer stations, Hartford solar array, 171 Murphy Road and
its home office. Excluded from the renewal due to lack of market participation and other noted factors
was the CSWS Waste to Energy Facility, CSWS Recycling Facility and the Jet Peaking Units. This
change resulted in a substantial reduction to the Authority’s schedule of values, deductibles and
premiums. The CSWS Recycling Facility was subsequently added to this policy following its conversion
to a recycling transfer operation in July 2021,

The Authority has renewed its Pollution Legal Liability generally consistent with historic coverage
amounts effective July I, 2020 through July 1, 2023,



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

7. RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Authority has also renewed its casualty and executive liability policies effective July 1, 2021 through
June 30, 2022. These include general and auto liability / physical damage, workers compensation, public
officials, crime, fiduciary, umbrella and excess coverage and were renewed generally consistent with
historic coverage amounts except that an additional $4 million in sub-limits on breach of contract
coverage was incorporated, an exclusion for class action lawsuits was incorporated, and certain
deductibles were increased from $50,000 to $100,000.

During fiscal year 2021, the Authority recognized $0.84 million in settlement income representing

insurance reimbursement of legal expenses incurred in defense of claims made by the operator of the
CSWS Recycling Facility.

8. COMMITMENTS

The Authority has various operating leases for its corporate office space, the Essex transfer station and

office equipment, which totaled approximately $216,000 and $215,000 for the years ended June 30, 2021
and 2020, respectively.

The Authority also has agreements with various municipalities for payments in lieu of taxes (“PILOT™)
for personal and real property. For cach of the years ended June 30, 202! and 2020,
the PILOT payments, which are included as a cost of solid waste totaled $1,603,000 and $1,606,000,
respectively. The City of Hartford PILOT agreement for the CSWS ended as of June 30, 2021. The City
of Hartford PILOT payment totaled $1,500,000 for the year ended June 30, 2021.

Future minimum payments under non-cancelable operating leases and future contracted PILOT payments
as of June 30, 2021 are as follows:

Lease PILOT

Amount Amount

Fiscal Year {$000) ($000)
2022 $ 206 $ 103
2023 210 103
2024 180 103
2025 17 103
2026 15 103
Thereafter 15 103
Total $ 643 $ 618

44



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2021 AND 2020

8. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

The Authority has executed contracts with the operators/contractors of the resources recovery facilities,
regional recycling centers, transfer stations, and landfills containing various terms and conditions. Major
operators/contractors and their contract expiration dates are as follows:

Contract
Operator/Contractor expiration date
Wheelabrator Technologies 6/30/2024
NAES Corporation 6/30/2022
USA Waste & Recycling 6/30/2023
CWPM, LLC 6/30/2023
Murphy Road Recycling 6/30/2027

Operating charges paid by the Authority are derived from various factors such as tonnage processed,
management fees and certain pass-through costs.

The approximate amount of contract operating charges paid by the Authority, and included in solid waste

operations, and maintenance and utilities expense for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 were as
follows:

2021 2020
Project ($000) (3000)
Connecticut Solid $ 47286 $ 48,777
Waste System
Property Division 827 802
Landfill Division (&) (6)
Total $ 48,105 $ 49,573

9. CONTINGENCIES

Mid-Connecticut Project

In March 2013, Tremont Public Advisors filed a complaint against the Authority in Connecticut Superior
Court, claiming that the Authority illegally awarded a contract for Municipal Government Liaison
Services and violated Connecticut’s Antitrust Act, and seeking injunctions, damages, interest, and
attorneys’ fees and costs. The Authority denies the allegations and has asserted several defenses. On
January 21, 2014, the Authority filed a motion to dismiss the complaint, supplemented on March 24,
2015, by a Motion to Strike the Antitrust count. On August 17, 2015, the court granted the Authority’s

43



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

9. CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

Motion to Dismiss the second count of the complaint and the Authority’s Motion to Strike the first count.
On September 10, 2015, the plaintiff filed a substituted complaint. The Authority filed both a Motion to
Dismiss and a Motion to Strike the single count of the new complaint on September 25, 2015; on March
31, 2016, the court denied the first, but granted the second. The plaintiff filed a second substituted
complaint on April 25, 2016; as before, the Authority responded with Motions to Dismiss and to Strike.
On May 35, 2017, the court again denied the Motion to Dismiss and granted the Motion to Strike. Tremont
did not file a third substitute complaint, but moved for Entry of Judgment and appealed the decision. The
Authority also raised issues in the appeal. On June 6, 2018, the Connecticut Supreme Court transferred
_ the matter to itself. In its ruling dated November 12, 2019, the Supreme Court found that the form of the
trial court’s judgment was improper, vacated the trial court’s grant of the Authority’s Motion to Strike,
and remanded the case with orders to grant the Authority’s Motion to Dismiss the second substituted

complaint. By order dated November 12, 2019, the trial court duly vacated the motion to strike and
granted the motion to dismiss.

In June 2020, Tremont Public Advisors filed an action under Connecticut’s accidental failure of suit
statute against the Authority in Connecticut Superior Court alleging that the Authority violated the
Connecticut Unfair Trade Practices Act, based on the same set of facts as its prior unsuccessful lawsuit.
On September 9, 2020, the Authority filed a Motion to Strike the complaint on several grounds, including
that it is exempt from actions under CUTPA under what is called the governmental exemption. On April
12, 2021, the court found that MIRA is exempt from CUTPA, and granted the Motion to Strike. On April
26, 2021, Tremont appealed that decision to the Appellate Court and on August 23, 2021, moved for final
Judgment to be entered in favor of MIRA in accordance with its decision so that the appeal may proceed.
The parties are required to attend a court-run mediation session prior to appellate briefing. The matter is
too preliminary to estimate any potential exposure.

Connecticut Solid Waste System Project

In April 2019 FCR filed suit against MIRA alleging breach of contract, breach of the covenant of good
faith and fair dealing and for a declaratory judgment. After a trial before the CT Superior Court in the
fall of 2020, a trial court decision and an appeal taken by MIRA, MIRA settled the case by paying FCR
$1.3 million, which included FCR’s commitment to run the facility through April 30, 2021 and to
complete agreed-upon repairs before exiting. The litigation is finally and fully resolved. FCR remained
at the facility through April 30, 2021, completed the repairs, and there are no further or outstanding
matters between FCR and MIRA relating to the Agreement,

In connection with the lawsuit captioned FCR, LLC v, MIRA, discussed above, the Authority tendered
the lawsuit to its insurance company, Indian Harbor Insurance Company (the “Carrier”) for defense and
indemnity. Indian Harbor tendered a defense to the Authority under a reservation of rights, and on July
I, 2019, commenced a declaratory judgment action against the Authority seeking a declaration that it
does not owe a defense or indemnity in the matter. Notwithstanding Indian Harbor’s position, Indian
Harbor reimbursed MIRA for a portion of its costs of defense associated with the FCR case.

On March 31, 2021, MIRA settled the case with Indian Harbor for a total payment of $844,126.85
($365,458.08 of which had been previously reimbursed) which covered MIRA’s legal costs for the FCR
case (less MIRAs $50,000 deductible). This matter is fully resolved.

46



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

9. CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

Zurich American Insurance Company, et. a). and MIRA v. NAES Corporation

MIRA operates the Connecticut Solid Waste System, a system that, among other things, collects and
processes solid waste generated from approximately 52 municipalities in Connecticut and converts it into
renewable energy. NAES Corporation (“NAES™) is a Washington corporation in the business of
operating and maintaining electric generating facilities. In 2010, CRRA entered into an agreement with
NAES to operate and maintain the Mid-Connecticut Resource Recovery Facility (“Facility”) located at |
Reserve Road and 300 Maxim Road in Hartford, CT (the “Agreement”). As CRRA’s successor, MIRA
assumed all rights and responsibilities of CRRA by operation of law, including its rights and
responsibilities under the Agreement with NAES. The Facility consists of a waste-processing section
which processes municipal solid waste delivered to the Facility, converting it to a refuse derived fuel
(“RDF”). RDF is then conveyed to the power block section of the Facility where RDF is combusted to
produce steam, which is in-turn used to produce electrical energy, which is sold on the open market. The
Facility uses two steam tutbine generators, Turbines No. 5 and No. 6, to convert steam to energy.

Under the Agreement, NAES agreed to provide continuous (24/7/365) Facility operation, and NAES was
solely responsible for operating and maintaining the turbines along with the rest of the Facility. NAES is
also solely responsible for any and all conditions created as a result of the Services it performs and to
prevent any damage to equipment at the Facility. To this end NAES also agreed to properly train all its
employees and to provide all reasonable and necessary protective measures while operating and
maintaining the Facility. NAES alone has operated and maintained the Facility since 2010, eight years
before the incident with Turbine No. 6,

Prior to November 5, 2018 Turbine No. 5 was in a scheduled outage, substantially disassembled, and the
Facility was running on one turbine, Turbine No. 6. On November 5, 2018 NAES was preparing Turbine
No. 6 for planned condenser maintenance. NAES knew the Facility was running with only one turbine
available. This was routine maintenance work NAES had performed previousty. NAES failed to
perform this maintenance work properly on this occasion (by assigning a junior plant operator trainee to
restart a component (the auxiliary pump) and he failed to perform certain critical steps prior to restarting
it, (i.e., he failed to confirm that the steam supply valve was open, he did not look at the correct oil
pressure gauge and he opened a bypass valve, among other things)). These failures caused Turbine No. 6
to fail and a Facility outage occurred. The operator failure caused extensive damage and the entire
Facility was shut down until Turbine No. 5 was returned to service on January 27, 2019, Both turbines
were simultaneously off-line for 84 days and MIRA was left with no operations. The Facility was unable
to process any waste because both turbines were inoperable. All the waste normally received at the
Facility from 52 municipalities had to be diverted to other disposal sites at considerable cost to MIRA.

MIRA made a claim under its own insurance policies, and paid for the applicable deductibles before
receiving any insurance payments. MIRA’s deductibles include $250,000 for property damage and a
time element deductible of 45 days following the occurrence for business interruption. MIRA incurred
deductible expenses of $2,789,397 during this 45-day waiting period deductible. MIRA’s total

deductible expense is $3,039,397. MIRA’s insurers paid out an additional $8,016,250. The total damage
from NAES’s negligence is $11,055,647.

47



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

9. CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

MIRA filed suit against NAES in state court on November 2, 2020. MIRA’s suit includes claims for
negligence, gross negligence and for breach of contract, NAES moved the case to federal court where it
is cutrently pending. MIRA’s insurers are co-plaintiffs in the case seeking subrogation of the insurance

proceeds they paid out under the count for gross negligence. The Agreement includes a waiver of
subrogation provision, '

NAES has asserted three counterclaims against MIRA: Breach of Contract, Common Law
Indemnification and Contractual Indemnification. NAES currently claims it is seeking to recover its
legal costs for defending against the subrogation claim. All three claims are based on MIRA not
preventing its insurance companies from filing a subrogation claim in light of the waiver of subrogation
provision. The law in Connecticut is not clear whether a waiver of subrogation claim covers gross
negligence. MIRA denies the claims and will vigorously defend against the counterclaims. MIRA did
agree to include a waiver of subrogation in its policies with all its insurers but MIRA has no control over
whether its insurance companies file suit or not. We believe the counterclaims have little merit and will
likely be unsuccessful; however, even if successful, MIRA’s exposure would be limited to NAES’s
defense costs, which are not capable of being estimated at this time. Discovery has just begun and NAES
has recently produced documents. The trial ready date is June 1, 2022,

An early mediation was held but the case did not settle. NAES recently filed a dispositive motion
against MIRA’s insurers to enforce the waiver of subrogation claim. After this motion is resolved the
parties will likely attempt settlement again.

Alleged Violations of the Freedom of Information Act (FOIA)

On August 17, 2020, October 5, 2020, November 3, 2020, January 14, 2021, January 20, 2021, and July 15,
2021 a series of allegations were docketed by the CT Freedom of Information Commission to initiate an
administrative proceeding to address several complaints alleging MIRA violated the Freedom of
Information Act. The allegations primarily involve claims that MIRA failed to properly provide notice in
certain of its monthly agendas of certain Executive Sessions or that insufficient notice was provided at the
time the Executive Session was initiated or that certain matters discussed in Executive Session were not
appropriate for Executive Session, and seek penalties for such violations. Administrative hearings have not
been scheduled yet. Pursuant to the Connecticut General Statutes § 1-206(b)(2) civil fines / penalties could
range from $20.00-$1000.00 per violation,

Other Issues; Unasserted Claims and Assessments

On March 31, 2009, the Authority submitted a timely water discharge renewal application seeking the re-
issuance of the Authority’s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (“NPDES”) Permit to the
Connecticut Department of Environmental Protection, now known as the Connecticut Department of
Energy and Environmental Protection (“DEEP”). Review of the Authority’s permit renewal application
by DEEP is ongoing, including whether the current location, design, construction and capacity of the
cooling water intake structures at the Authority’s South Meadows Facility represents best technology
available (“BTA”) for minimizing adverse environmental impact and, if not, what additional operational
and/or technological measures reflecting BTA will need to be implemented at the Facility. Since DEEP

48



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

9. CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

is fully aware that the Authority currently intends to suspend operation of the Facility indefinitely in
2022, it is questionable whether any further action on this matter will be required or undertaken.

In connection with acquisition of the South Meadows real estate in December, 2000, the Authority
assumed responsibility for the remediation of pre-existing pollution conditions at the site. At the same
time, the Authority entered into an Exit Strategy Contract with TRC Companies, Inc. (“*TRC”),
whereunder TRC assumed the obligation for such remediation and agreed to be the Certifying Party
pursuant to the Connecticut Transfer Act. On May 7, 2018, TRC submitted a Verification (i.e., final
sign-off) for the site to DEEP, certifying that the site has been fully remediated in accordance with
applicable environmental requirements. DEEP rejected the Verification on June 24, 2019, due to the
discovery of PCBs on the site during work to relocate underground utilities by Eversource Energy:.
DEEP has required that TRC perform further characterization of the site. TRC has completed the

characterization and is in the process of developing a remedial action plan to address the PCB
contamination,

Coverage under the insurance policy issued by AIG Corporation that was the source of funds to perform
the remediation under the Exit Strategy Contract expired on March 30, 2016, TRC may demand payment
from the Authority for the additional costs to finalize the Verification of the Site for the period from
March 31, 2016 to the date on which the Verification is resubmitted, because the source of funding has
expired. Additionally, if the resubmitted Verification is audited and deficiencies are found that require
correction, and/or the Verification is rejected again, TRC may demand payment for those costs as well.
TRC and the Authority have submitted a claim under the AIG policy, which includes coverage for
cleanup of previously unknown pre-existing conditions. The claim has been acknowledged by AIG, but
no coverage determination has been issued. TRC has performed investigatory work over the past two
years, but has not informed the Authority regarding costs to date. Additional costs continue to accrue.
The Authority’s deductible under the applicable coverage provision of the AIG policy is $100,000.

The Authority has entered into certain Tier | Long Term Municipal Solid Waste Management Services
Agreements with Connecticut municipalities which expire June 30, 2027, The Authority has also entered
into certain Tier 1 Short Term Municipal Solid Waste Management Services Agreements with
Connecticut municipalities which expire June 30, 2022. These Tier 1 long term and short term
agreements provide that the municipality may terminate the agreement within thirty days after receiving
notice that the Authority has adopted a disposal fee that exceeds the opt out disposal fee established in
the agreement. For fiscal year 2021, the Authority adopted a Tier 1 Long Term disposal fee of $91.00
per ton in comparison to a Tier 1 Long Term opt out disposal fee of $67.73 per ton. For fiscal year 2021,
the Authority adopted a Tier 1 Short Term disposal fee of $93.00 per ton in comparison to a Tier ! Short
Term opt out disposal fee of $69.84 per ton. In fiscal year 2021, Tier 1 Long Term and Tier 1 Short
Term agreements represented 81% and 0.6%, respectively, of total waste delivered to the Connecticut
Solid Waste System. For fiscal year 2022, the Authority adopted Tier | Long Term and Short Term
disposal fees that exceed the opt out disposal fee; three municipalities elected to terminate their

Municipal Solid Waste Management Services Agreements as permitted thereunder based upon the
adopted disposal fee.

49



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

9. CONTINGENCIES (Continued)

The Authority is subject to numerous federal, state and local environmental and other laws and

regulations and management believes it is in substantial compliance with all such governmental laws and
regulations.

10, NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS ISSUED AND NOT YET ADOPTED

In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain
Authoritative Guidance. The primary objective of this statement is to provide temporary relief to
governments and other stakeholders in Jight of the COVID-19 pandemic. That objective is accomplished
by postponing the effective dates of certain provisions in statements and implementation guides that first

became effective or are scheduled to become effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018, and
later.

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better
meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting
for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements
by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as
operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment
provisions of the contract, It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee
is required: to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required
to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and
consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities. The requirements of this statement are
effective for the Authority’s reporting period beginning July 1, 2021, which reflects the eighteen month
postponement pursuant to GASB Statement No. 95 issued in May 2020. The Authority is currently
evaluating the potential impact of adopting this Statement on its financial statements.

In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End
of a Construction Period. The objective of this Statement are (a) to enhance the relevance and
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and (b)
to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period, The
requirements of this Statement should be applied prospectively and are effective for the Authority’s
reporting period beginning July 1, 2021, which reflects the one year postponement pursuant to GASB
Statement No. 95 issued in May 2020. The Authority does not expect this statement to have a material
effect on its financial statements.

In May 2019, the GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations. The objectives of this
statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate
diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated
with conduit debt obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. The requirements of this statement are
effective for the Authority’s reporting period beginning July 1, 2022, which reflects the one year
postponement pursuant to GASB Statement No. 95 issued in May 2020. The Authority does not expect
this statement to have a material effect on its financial statements.



Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2021 AND 2020

10. NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS ISSUED AND NOT YET ADOPTED
(Continued)

In January 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020. The objectives of this Statement are
to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of
authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation and
application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics and the
requirements of this statement are effective for the Authority’s reporting period beginning July 1, 2021,
which reflects the one year postponement pursuant to GASB Statement No. 95 issued in May 2020. The
Authority does not expect this statement to have a material effect on its financial statements.

[n March 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and
Availability Payment Arrangements. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial
reporting by addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements
(PPPs). The requirements of this statement are effective for the Authority’s reporting period beginning

July 1, 2022. The Authority is currently evaluating the potential impact of adopting this Statement on its
financial statements.

In May 2020, the GASB issued Statement 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements. This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for
subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end users
(governments). The requirements of this statement are effective for the Authority’s reporting period

beginning July 1, 2022. The Authority does not expect this statement to have a material effect on its
financial statements.

In June 2020, the GASB issued Statement 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans — An
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 14 and No. 84, and a Supersession of GASB Statement No. 32. The
primary objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related to the
reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not
have a governing board and the primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically
would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension
plans, defined contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans
other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in
fiduciary fund financial statements; and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the
accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation
plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through
those plans. The requirements of this statement are effective for the Authority’s reporting period

beginning July 1, 2021. The Authority is currently evaluating the potential impact of adopting this
Statement on jts financial statements.



MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY

A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - COMBINING SCHEDULE OF STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Unrestricted Assets:
h and cash equivalents
ccounts receivable, net of allowances
Inventory

Prepaid expenses
Due trom other funds
Total Unrestricted Assets

Restricted Assets:
Cash and cash equivalenis
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Capital Assets:
Depreciable:
Plant
Equipment

Less: Accumulated depreciation
Total Depreciable, net
Nondepreciable:
Land
Construction in pre
Tatal Nondepr
Fotal Capital £

TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS
TOTAL ASSETS

AS OF JUNE 30, 2021
(Doflars in Thousaads)

EXHIBIT A
Page 1 of 3

Authority Connecticut
General Mid-Connecticut  Propeny Landfill
Fund System Project Division Division Eliminations Total
3.664 5 L6 % 2 515967 2,404 $ - % 33,199
1 6,849 - 745 7.595
- 4,842 - 730 - - 5,572
- 2.474 “ 49 206 - 2,729
451 2 - 26,706 - (27,159 -
4.116 25,329 2 44,197 2610 {27,159 49,093
- 1.052 - 31 - - 1,103
4,116 26.381 2 14.248 2610 (27.159} 54,198
84 - - 188.179 25333 - 213,616
975 - - 243.832 4,483 - 249,292
1,059 - - 432,011 29.838 - 462,908
(1.029) - - i428.527) (22771 - (457.327)
30 - - 3484 2.067 - 5,581
- - - 10,130 16,109 B 26,239
- - - 43 - - 43
- - - 10,173 16,10% - 26,282
30 - - 13.657 18,176 - 31.863
30 - - 13,657 18,176 - 31,863
4,146 26,381 2 57905 20.786 (27.139) 82.061

See Independent Auditor's Report

52



MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY EXHIBIT A

A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut Page 2 of 3
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - COMBINING SCHEDULE OF STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (Continued)
AS OF JUNE 30, 2021

(Dollars in Thousands)

Authority Connecticut
General Solid Waste  Mid-Conneeticut Property f.andfill
Fund System Project Division Division Eliminations Total
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Payable from Unrestricted Assets:
Accounts pavable 3 15 3 1379 $ $ 4y S - $ - % 1,390
Accerued expenses and other current fiabilities 703 7,831 2 89 136 - 8,801
Due 1o other tunds 2 27,066 - 82 9 (27,159 -
Unearmed revenug - - - 38 - - 38
Total Payvable trom Unresiricted Assets 220 36,296 2 205 1635 27.139) 10,229
Pavable from Restricted Assets:
Acecrued expenses and other current Habilities - 1,032 - - - - 1,082
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 720 37.348 2 205 165 (27.159) 11,281
TOTAL LIABILITIES 720 37,348 2 205 165 {27.159) 11,281

See Independent Auditor's Report

53



MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY

EXHIBIT A
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticat

Page 3 of 3
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - COMBINING SCHEDULE OF STATEMENT OF NET POSITION {Continaed}
AS OF JUNE 30, 2021
(Dolars in Thousands)
Authority Connecticut
General Solid Waste  Mid-Connecticut  Property Landfilt
Fund System Project Division Division Eliminations Total
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital asseis $ RIS - 8 - § 136357 $ 18176 % $ 31,863
Restricted - - - 51 - - 51
Unrestricted 3.396 (10.967) - 43,992 2,443 - 38,866
TOTAL NET POSYTION $ 3,426 $ {10967y § - $ 57700 $ 20621 3 - $ 70,780

See Independent Auditor's Report

54



MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY
A Cemponent Unit of the State of Connecticut

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REV
FOR THE YEAR ENDED )

Operating Revenues
Service charges:
Members

Others
Energy sales
Other
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Solid waste operations
Maintenance and utilities
Legal services - extenal
Administrative and Operational services
Total Operating Expenses

Operating [ncore (Loss) before depreciztion
and amortization

Depreciation and amortization
Operating Income (Loss)

Noa-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
{nvestment income
Settlerent income
Seftlement expenses, net
Distribution o SCRRRA
Distributions to towns
Other revenues {expenses), net
Totat Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses), net

Income (Loss) before Transfers
‘Transfers

Change in Net Position

Total Net Position, beginging of year

Total Net Position, end of year

£

£ 30, 2021

NUES, EXPENSES ANDY CHANGES IN NET POSITION

EXHIBIT B

{Dollars in Thousands)
Authority Conpecticut
General Solid Waste  Mid-Connecticut  Property Landfill
Fund System Project Division Division Eliminations Total

3 - % 37733 § - 3 £ -8 3Is3
- 6,133 - - - - 6,153

- 13,928 - 10,180 120 « 24,228

- 3,054 - 3522 55 - 3,631

- 60,888 - 10.702 173 - 71,765

- 32,305 1,727 99 {170y 54,161

- 13.867 - 100 - - 13,967

- 599 - - - - 599

41 3,633 - 783 69 - 4,526

41 70.604 - 2,610 168 (170} 73.283
“h 9,716y - 8,092 7 170 1,488y

14 - - P4.517 138 - 14,669
{53) (9,716) - (6,425) (131 176 (16,157)

- 7 - 18 - - 25

- 844 - - - - 844
- (1.300) - - - - {1,300)
- (19) - - - (e8]
[ - 4y (134 - (132)
6 (449) {23) (116} - (582)
(49) (10,165} (23 6.541) (13h 170 {16,739)

100 3.316 - (3.446) - (170} -
51 (6.649) (23) (9,987} (3n - (16,739
3.375 (4.318; 23 67.687 20,752 - 87,519

$ 342 S (10967 § - 57,700 $ 20621 $ - § 79,780

See Independent Auditor’s Report

N

5



MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY EXHIBIT C
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut Page I of 2
TARY INFORMATION - COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 36, 2021
(Dollars in Thousands)

SU

Authority Connecticut
(General Solid Waste Mid-Connecticut Property Landfill
Fund System Project Division Division Eliminations Total

Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Operating Activitics

Payments reccived from providing services S - § 60,130 1 - S 103,792 S 187 g - §  TL,129

Payments to suppliers and employees (1i5) (64,997} 2 {2,196} {395) L7 (67.331)

Payments o other funds 78 9473 - 19,547} (43 - -

Distributions w towns - - {23} - - - (23}

Distribution to SCRRRA - - - - - - -

Settlement income - ' (436) - - - - (456)

Settlement expenses - - - - - - -
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities 37 4.170 21 {951) 212) 170 3,119
Cash Flows Provided by Investing Activities

Interest an investnients - 7 - 8 - - 25
Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities - 7 - 18 - - 25
Cash Flows Provided by (Used in} Capital and

Related Financing Activities

Proceeds from sales of equipment - - - 3] - - (1)

Acquisition and construction of captial assets - - - (1,062) - - {1,062)
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Capital and

Related Financing Activities - - - (1,063) - - (1.063)

Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Noa-Capital Financing Activities

Transfers 100 3,516 -~ (3.446) - (170) -
Net Cash Provided by (ised in) Non-Capital Financing Activities 100 3316 - (3.446) - (70 -
Net Increase (Pecrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 63 7,693 (2] {5.442) {212y - 2,081
Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of year 3.601 1521 23 21,460 2616 - 32,221
Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year $ Jeed  § 12214 § 208 le0i1g S 2404 S =8 34302

See Independent Auditor's Report

56



MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY

Reconcitiation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities:
Operating income {loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation of capital assets
Other income (expenses), net
Changes in assets and Habilities, net of transfers:
{Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable, net
Inventory
Prepaid expens
Increase {decrease) in:

Accounts payable, acerued expenses and other labilities
Due toffrom other funds

EXHIBIT C
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut Page 2 of 2
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - COMBINING SCHEDULE OF CASH FLOWS {Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021
(Doltars in Thousands)
Aathority Connecticut
General Solid Waste Landfif)
Fuad System Division Total
(5%5) % (9716 $ (1313 $ (16,157
14 - 138 14,669
(456) - {479)
- (738 12 (636}
- {130 - 261
. (92) (206) (299)
(74) 5.830 (213 3,760
7 9.473 (4 -
(EXI 4170 $ (2123 s 3,119

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities

See Independent Auditor's Report

57



MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY EXHIBIT D
A Component Unit of the State of Connecticut Page { of2
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION
AS OF JUNE 38, 262

(Dollars in Thousands) !
Authority Conpecticut
General Solid Waste Mid-Conneecticut  Property Land{ilf
Fund Svystem Project Division Division Fliminations Total
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets S 30 3 - $ - $ 13657 S 18176 $ - $ 31863
Restricted Net Position:
Current restricted cash and cash equivalents:
Customer guarantee of payment - 1,052 - - - - 1,052
Town of Eftington trust - pooled funds - - - 5t - - 51
Total current resiricted cash and cash equivalenis - 1,052 - 51 - - 1,103

Less liabilitics to bo paid with current restricted assets:
Other liabilities - 1,052 -

Total Restricted Net Position -

See Independent Auditor's Report

58



MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY
A& Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

EXHIBIT D

Page 2 of 2
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - COMBINING SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION {Continuedy
AS OF JUNE 30, 2021
(Dollars in Thounsands)
Authonty Connecticut
General Solid Waste  Mid-Connecticut  Property Landfill
Fund System Project Division Division Eliminations Total
NET POSITION
Unrestricted Net Position:
Board Designated Reserves:
Debt service $ -8 E . $ - % - 3% -3 4
Fature oss contingencies - 807 - - - - 897
General fund - i - 11,064 - - 11,065
improvements - - - 479 - - 479
Legal - 639 - - - - 639
Tip fee stabilization B - - 1 - - 1
Jets major maintapence - - - 964 - - 964
CSWS major maintenance - 2267 - - - - 2.267
Litigstion - - - - - - 0
Project/Post-project closure - - - - [
Scverance 2,541 - - - - 2,541
Hartford Solar - - - 335 - 335
Pollution insurance - - - - - - 0
Total Board Designated Reserves 2,541 3,808 - 12,308 133 - 19,192
tUndesignated 855 (14.775% - 31,484 2,116 - 19,674
Total Unrestricted Net Position 3.396 {10,967 - 43,992 2443 - 318.866
Total Net Position g 3.426 $ (ov9en § -8 37700 S 20,621 $ - $ 70,780

See lndependent Auditor's Report

9

w



Materials Innovation and Recycling Ruthority
B Component Unit of the State of Connecticut

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

This document is printed on recycled content paper

60



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
INACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors of the
Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority

5 ' a'zrm;.g Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the statement of net position, and { ements of revenues, expenses and changes in

net position, and cash flows of the Materials Innovatic yuthority (the Authority) (a component unit of
the State of Connecticut) as of and for the year ended ;

In planning and performing our audit of
financial reporting (internal control) as a
for the purpose of expressing our gt
on the effectiveness of the Aut
the Authority's internal cont

@ udxt procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
anual statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
0. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness

A deficiency in internal contro the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course o g their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weaknes$g€ a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
considered to be material weaknesses.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statements. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions wags not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards

in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

Hartford, Connecticut
September XX, 2021




TAB 4



RESOLUTION REGARDING ADDITIONAL PROJECTED LEGAL
EXPENDITURES

WHEREAS, MIRA has entered into Legal Service Agreements with various law
firms to perform legal services; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors has previously authorized certain amounts for
payment of fiscal year 2022 projected legal fees; and

WHEREAS, MIRA expects to incur greater than authorized legal expenses
related to several matters with its general counsel; and

WHEREAS, funding is requested at this time from a CSWS reserve not approved
through the budget process;

NOW THEREFORE, it is RESOLVED: That the following additional amount be
authorized for payment of projected legal fees and costs to be incurred during
fiscal year 2022:

Firm: Amount:
Halloran & Sage ’ ' $400,000
and

FURTHER RESOLVED: That a budget of $300,000 be established for payment
of FY 22 legal fees and expenses incurred in connection with the lawsuit known
as Zurich American Insurance Company et al. v. NAES; that $300,000 from the
CSWS Legal Reserve be available as the funding source for such budget: and
that the President be authorized to expend up to that budgeted amount for
payment of such legal costs.



MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY

Request regarding Authorization for Payment of Projected Additional Legal
Expenses

September 22, 2021

Executive Summary

This is to request Board authorization for payment of additional projected
fiscal 22 legal expenses.

Discussion:

When the FY ’22 budgets were developed last winter, resolutions and
settlements were pending, and further developments were too speculative to
forecast. We are now seeking board authorization to incur additional legal
expenses with our General Counsel for pending FY ‘22 matters, including,
among other things, the Zurich/MIRA v. NAES lawsuit and permitting issues
related to waste management in FY ‘23 and beyond, and for Authority budget
procedural and statutory compliance matters.



TAB 5



RESOLUTION REGARDING AUTHORIZING AND FUNDING A CSWS DECOMMISSIONING COST ACCOUNT
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022

WHEREAS: Section 702 of the Authority’s Amended and Restated Bylaws provides that “After adoption
of the final budget, the President shall ensure the proper allocation of the budget to an established
chart of accounts. Budget appropriations allocated to the accounts of the Authority shall not be
exceeded without the prior approval of the Directors. The President may transfer funds within the line
items for each Project without limit as long as each line item of each Project and the grand total of each
fund is not exceeded without the prior approval of the Directors.”; and

WHEREAS: The Authority has a present need and otherwise desires to authorize the establishment and
funding of a Decommissioning Cost account to initially be used for payment of consultant services
needed to develop a scope of work and cost estimate to ultimately decommission certain Connecticut
Solid Waste System facilities.

NOW THEREFORE, it is RESOLVED:

That the Board of Directors hereby authorizes establishment of a Decommissioning Cost account for the
CSWS which may initially be funded in the amount of $50,000 through transfer of surplus funds within
the adopted line items of the CSWS Operating Budget; and may be further administered pursuant to the
President’s authority under section 702 of the Authority’s Amended and Restated Bylaws.



TAB6



RESOLUTION REGARDING SUBMITTAL OF AN
ANNUAL PLAN OF OPERATIONS TO THE CONNECTICUT
DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION

RESOLVED: That the Board of Directors hereby authorizes MIRA management to
submit the Annual Plan of Operations for FY2022 to the Connecticut Department of

Energy and Environmental Protection, substantially as discussed and presented at this
meeting.




Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority

Authorization to Submit Annual Plan of Operations to
the Connecticut Department of Energy and
Environmental Protection
Pursuant to CGS 22a-264

September 22, 2021

Discussion

Section 22a-264 of the Connecticut General Statutes (“CGS”) requires that MIRA submit
to the Connecticut Department of Energy and Environmental Protection (“DEEP™), on an
annual basis, an Annual Plan of Operations. The Annual Plan of Operations is to be
reviewed by the Commissioner of DEEP for consistency with the State-wide Solid Waste
Management Plan (now referred to as the Comprehensive Materials Management
Strategy, “CMMS”). A copy of CGS Section 22a-264 is attached for your convenience.

MIRA Board of Directors Procedure No. 011 governs the internal review process
associated with this obligation. The policy requires that the Annual Plan of Operations
be forwarded to the Executive Committee of the Board for comment, review and
recommendation prior to submission to the full Board of Directors. The full Board of
Directors is then to authorize MIRA management to submit the Annual Plan of
Operations to DEEP so that it may be reviewed by DEEP for consistency with the
CMMS. A copy of CRRA’s Procedure Regarding the Adoption of the Annual Plan of
Operation and Budget (Board of Directors Procedure No. 011, effective March 24, 2005),
is attached for your convenience.

This is to submit to the MIRA Board of Directors an Annual Plan of Operations for
FY2022 for review, and to seek authorization to forward the Annual Plan of Operations
to the Commissioner of DEEP so that DEEP may review it for consistency with the
CMMS. Upon receiving DEEP concurrence that the Plan is consistent with the CMMS,

the Annual Plan of Operations will then be brought back before the full Board of
Directors for adoption.




9/13/21, 1:51 PM Chapter 446e - Solid Waste Management Services Act

Sec. 22a-264. (Formerly Sec. 19-524w). Activities and operations. The activities of the authority in providing or
contracting to provide solid waste management services shall be in conformity with applicable statutes and
regulations and with the state-wide solid waste management plan as adopted by the Commissioner of Energy and
Environmental Protection. The authority shall prepare an annual plan of operations which shall be reviewed by
the Commissioner of Energy and Environmental Protection for consistency with the state-wide solid waste
management plan. Upon approval by the Commissioner of Energy and Environmental Protection and by a vote
of the authority's full board of directors, the annual plan of operations shall be adopted. Any activities of the
authority carried out to assist in the development of industry and commerce based upon the availability of
recovered resources for recycling and reuse shall be coordinated to the extent practicable with plans and
activities of Connecticut Innovations, Incorporated, with due consideration given to the secondary materials and
waste management industries operating within the state of Connecticut.

(P.A.73-459, 8. 8,26; P.A. 74-338, S. 70, 94; P.A. 83-112; P.A. 11-80, S. 1; June 12 Sp. Sess. P.A. 12-1, S. 152;
P.A. 14-94,S.6,75.)

History: P.A. 74-338 replaced Connecticut development commission with Connecticut development authority;
Sec. 19-524w transferred to Sec. 22a-264 in 1983; P.A. 83-112 authorized the commissioner of environmental
protection to review the plan of operation, and required commissioner's approval as well as that of authority's
board of directors for promulgation of plan; pursuant to P.A. 11-80, “Commissioner of Environmental
Protection” and “Department of Environmental Protection” were changed editorially by the Revisors to
“Commissioner of Energy and Environmental Protection” and “Department of Energy and Environmental
Protection”, respectively, effective July 1, 2011; pursuant to June 12 Sp. Sess. P.A. 12-1, “Connecticut
Development Authority” was changed editorially by the Revisors to “Connecticut Innovations, Incorporated”,
effective July 1, 2012; P.A. 14-94 deleted provisions re providing solid waste management services to the state,
regions, municipalities and persons, re implementing state resources recovery system, re planning, designing,
financing, constructing, managing or operating solid waste facilities and re power of authority to assist in
preparation and revision of state solid waste management plan and to revise and update plan, changed
requirement for adoption of annual plan of operations from a two-thirds vote to a vote of authority's full board of
directors, added reference to waste management industries, replaced references to state solid waste management

plan with references to state-wide solid waste management plan, and made technical changes, effective June 6,
2014.

httne //www caa ot anv/ecnirrant/niith/chan AARa himdcean 994 QA



CONNECTICUT
RESOURCES
RECOVERY
AUTHORITY

PROCEDURE REGARDING THE ADOPTION OF THE ANNUAL
PLAN OF OPERATION AND BUDGET

BOARD OF DIRECTORS PROCEDURE NO. 011

1. POLICY

It is intent of the Connecticut Resources Recovery Authority (“CRRA™) to adopt an annual
plan of operations (the “Annual Plan of Operations”) and annual budgets for each project
and the general fund (the “Annual Budgets”) in an orderly and timely manner, while
adhering to the Bylaws, contract timelines, bond indentures and incorporating business
goals.

2. PROCEDURE

As authorized by Conn. Gen. Stat. Section 22a-268(a), the CRRA Board of Directors shall
adopt an Annual Plan of Operations and Annual Budgets prior to the beginning of each
fiscal year. The Annual Plan of Operations will adhere to any requirements as defined in
Conn. Gen. Stat. Section 22a-264.

3. GUIDELINES
3.1 Development

CRRA management, under the direction of the President, shall develop draft Annual
Plans of Operations which set forth the objectives of the CRRA for the next ensuing
fiscal year.

Under the direction of the President, CRRA management shall develop draft Annual
Budgets which set forth the financial plans of the CRRA for the next ensuing fiscal
year.

1 of3 P&P No.; BOD 011
Effective Date: 03/24/05



3.2

3.3

3.4

Approval Process

Each draft Annual Plan of Operations shall be forwarded to the CRRA Executive

Committee for comment, review and recommendations prior to its submission to the
CRRA Board of Directors for review.

The Plan of Operations, if and as amended by the CRRA Executive Committee, shall
be forwarded to the CRRA Board of Directors for review.

After reviewing and approving the Plan of Operations, the CRRA Board of Directors
will authorize CRRA management to forward the Plan of Operations to the
Commissioner of the Department of Environmental Protection for the State of
Connecticut (“DEP Commissioner”) for approval.

If the DEP Commissioner does not approve the Plan of Operations, the CRRA
Executive Committee and CRRA management will consult with the DEP
Commissioner until a Plan of Operations is drafted that is satisfactory to all parties.

Upon approval by the DEP Commissioner, the Plan of Operations will be forwarded to
the CRRA Board of Directors for adoption in accordance with the CRRA Bylaws,
contract terms and bond indentures.

Each draft Annual Budget shall be forwarded to the CRRA Finance Committee for

comment, review and recommendations prlor to its submission to the CRRA Board of
Directors for adoption.

Each Annual Budget, if and as amended by the CRRA Finance Committee, shall be
forwarded to the CRRA Board of Directors for adoption in accordance with the CRRA
Bylaws, contract terms and bond indentures.

Publication

Once adopted, each Annual Budget shall be sent by CRRA management to the

respective participating member municipalities in a timely manner, as required by
contract or bond indenture.

Once adopted, the Annual Plan of Operations shall be forwarded by CRRA
management to the DEP Commissioner for approval prior to the commencement of
the next ensuing fiscal year.

The adopted and approved Annual Plan of Operations shall also be posted on the
CRRA internet.

Modifications
The CRRA Board of Directors, with a two-thirds vote, may change the total amount of

the Annual Budgets during the course of the fiscal year when they deem necessary and
if' allowable by contract or bond indenture.

20f3 P&P No.: BOD 011
Effective Date: 03/24/05



ORIGINAL
Approved by:
Effective Date:

Board of Directors
November 20, 1990

REVISION 1
Prepared by:

Approved by:
Effective Date:

Robert Constable
Controller

Board of Directors
March 24, 2005

3 0of 3

P&P No.: BOD 011
Effective Date: 03/24/05



& innovation and Becycling Authority

Annual Plan of Operations — FY 2022

Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority

The Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority (“MIRA”) is a quasi-public entity of the State of
Connecticut that currently provides solid waste disposal and recycling services to more than 50
municipalities in the state. Pursuant to Section 22a-264 of the Connecticut General Statutes MIRA is
required to prepare an Annual Plan of Operations and to submit it to the Connecticut Department of
Energy and Environmental Protection (“DEEP”) for its review for consistency with the State Solid
Waste Management Plan, now referred to as the Comprehensive Materials Management Strategy.

This document is MIRA’s Annual Plan of Operations for Fiscal Year (“FY™) 2022.
This Annual Plan of Operations consists of five sections, as follows:

Section 1: Board Resolution and FY2022 Budget for MIRA’s Connecticut Solid Waste System
Division.
Section 2: Board Resolution and FY2022 Budget for MIRA’s Property Division

Section 3: Board Resolution and FY2022 Budget for MIRA’s Landfill Division
Section 4: Board Resolution and FY2022 Authority Budget
Section 5: Key Activities to be undertaken by MIRA during its Fiscal Year 2022

A. Submittal of a Solid Waste Permit Modification Application in order to conduct Transfer
of Municipal Solid Waste at MIRA’s Resource Recovery Facility in Hartford

B. Request for Proposals to Support MSW Transfer Activities
C. Development of Closure Plan for MIRA’s Resource Recovery Facility in Hartford

D. MIRA Activities in Support of the Comprehensive Materials Management Strategy



Section 1



ALTERNATE RESOLUTION B - MRR Transfer Conversion

Proposals process known as Resource Rediscovery that was intended to provide for the long term
redevelopment of the Connecticut Solid Waste System’s (“CSWS”) Waste to Energy (“WTE”) Facility and
its Recycling Facility concluded unsuccessfully; and

WHEREAS: Such unsuccessful conclusion obligates the Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority
(“Authority”) to evaluate its options to otherwise continye providing municipal solid waste and recycling

possible under the circumstances; and

WHEREAS: Having considered available information and evolving policies, the Authority has concluded
that, in the absence of major refurbishment, a managed shutdown and conversion of the WTE Facility
into a Transfer Station is in the best interest of the State and Participating Municipalities and should be

WHEREAS: Having considered available information and evolving policies, the Authority has further
concluded that a managed shutdown and conversion of the Recycling Facility into a Transfer Stationon a
year-to-year basis, and in order to maintain the permitteg solid waste processing capacity and the
potential to redevelop MIRA’s Recycling Facility, is in the best interest of the State and Participating
Municipalities and should be undertaken during Fiscal Year 2021 with the intent that processing of

Acceptable Recyclables at the Recycling Facility concludes effective May 1, 2021 (“Recycling Facility
Conversion”); and :

mitigate such increases to the extent feasible but believes additional financial support may be necessary
to avoid erosion of such organized demand which Mmay occur through optional termination of Municipal
Service Agreements by CSWS Participating Municipalities; and



increases, the likelihood of which will not be determined before conclusion of the current legislative
session; and

WHEREAS: At its February 24, 2021 meeting, the Authority adopted its CSWS tip fee schedule reflecting
CSWS Recycling Facility Capital Improvements and Additional Use of Reserves that were subject to
further authorization of this Board; and

WHEREAS: concurrent with the adoption of this resolution the Authority’s Board of Directors has
separately authorized the President to enter into an Agreement with Murphy Road Recycling, LLC
providing for the conduct of Transfer Station activities at the site of the Recycling Facility.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT:

RESOLVED: That Management is directed to issue a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) for Operation,
Maintenance and Optional Redevelopment of the WTE Facility as a Transfer Station effective July 1,
2022 and such other RFPs as may be necessary in support of such transition including, but not limited to,
services provided through the Torrington, Watertown and Essex Transfer Stations; and

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the following Fiscal Year 2022 CSWS Operating and Capital Budgets attached
hereto as Exhibit A (presentation form) and Exhibit B (budget line items) are hereby adopted and
authorized for expenditure as presented and discussed at this meeting:

® CSWS Operating Expense Budget totaling $66.439 million;
* CSWS Waste to Energy Facility Major Maintenance Budget totaling $5.405 million; and
o CSWS Tip Fee Stabilization Funding of $7.171 million.

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the following Fiscal Year 2022 CSWS Capital Budget attached hereto as
Exhibit A (presentation form) and Exhibit B (budget line items) is hereby adopted:

*  CSWS Recycling Facility Improvement / Major Maintenance Budget totaling SO million; and
¢ Additional use of Reserve of $0.209 million.

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the Board of Directors hereby encourages the Department of Energy and
Environmental Protection to propose and support financial assistance intended to avoid or delay the
WTE Conversion or the Recycling Facility Conversion should that be more closely aligned with evolving
State waste management policies.

FURTHER RESOLVED: That the Board of Directors hereby encourages the CSWS Participating
Municipalities to consider implementing a Pay as You Throw program to mitigate tip fee increases and
enhance diversion of waste from combustion in FY 2022 and from landfilling commencing FY 2023.

Page | 2



o Ui

ALN3IWdOI3N3a

; | 139angd 1VLIdVD

el | ANV OSNILV¥3dO
T s Ao ZZ0Z ¥V3AA TVOSid

SJ9ALI A

9NUDA9Y 924 |esodsi(] UON

SUoIINQGIIIUOD) SAJ3SOY

uwwﬁsm odUBUUIRL
: BEAG= : spoaN juawabeuep
(_O._NZ Q quwEw>OLQE_ i ; £ 93sem plos jedidjunpy

pue BuijoAsay
/ e 3 | S,3N21323Uuuo0n
umw_usmmmcwn_xm_wc_um(_maO ._,..ﬁ._..,.,. .,.em..o_z_os_n:..

‘3s09 39N Bunnsuz

$934 umo] 3unedidiJed-uoN

$934 umo] 3unedidnied «
193png yeuq AJewwing <«

:193pNg PapUSWIWIOIDY <«

(43ISNVYL ONIMOADTY) VNI V LIgiHX3

ALIMOHLNY DONITOADIY ANV NOILVAONNI STVIEILVIA



SYSIA JO SUOISIAOIH 884 di] INO 1dO poadx3 [|IM
994 di] pajdopy LZ0Z A4 Woi4 asealou| uoj Jad 00 VLS e

uoljiw (12°0) $ - 9AI9S9Y JO BS( [eUOINPPY [ejudjod ©
uoimn (21°2) $ - pun4 uonezijiqels @84 dil SMSO ©
0 w - pun4 adueJIaA_S YHIN (0]

0 $ -pundg |eBe1SMSD  ©

0 $ -pungsSiY SMSO  ©

uoliN Ot'S $ - pun4 aoueusjuiely Jofey SMSD  ©
uoliN D $ - pun4 jJusweanoidwj SMSO  ©

:suoNNQLIUO)) BAlasay pasodold e

uoliN (86°L) ¢ - SUOIINQLIIUOY) BAIBSaY alojag sSoT buneladQ e
UOIIN #7999 - sosuadxg bunesadQ |elo] e
Uol|iiiN 9 9% - SanuaAay buneisad(Q |Bjo] e

@ |

19bpng yeiq Alewwng




Juonesado jo 1500 19N pajewlse ayj Aed op Jusioyns se

pajewunse spuny eonpoJd jleys 'suc | 81ebeibby sy} pue 884 [2S0MSI(] 9SBY 8yl JO Jonpoid ay] Jey] Jons so- [eS0AsKT esedq 8y] 18s jleys, VHIN

(uo1/99°91L) $

s

(802'62€°2) $

96/°'168  $

86¢2',£6'€5$

600°L06°LLS

L0E VY8 LLS

- 994 |esodsiq aseg wuolun jo Apisgng jusjeAinby :8joN

250°'60Z$ - (uoneziIOYINY pieog Jayuny 0} 303fqng) aAlasay Jo as jeuonippy [euadjod ©
95901 °2$ - uonezijiqels @e4 di| 0} uolngulsig dwodu| uoisiAig Auedoid pajdopy  ©

, - Buipund o1 19NpaQ

pue {uo) /00’2 ® suol 8/8'GZy —Buoq LaelL  ©
- SJUNODSI(] 82IAIBS JO 1S0D) PPY

asealoul %G'eZ / eev'€L2'0LE ©
- uonesadQ Jo 150D 1©N

(uol /00°2$ @ ¢ Jo11) Sea4 90IAIBS JBqWIBIN 000°8Z$ Sepnjou]  ©
uononpal %G/t / 29G°'0€2'9Lg  ©
- 9NUBASY 994 |esodsi(] UON

(uononpel %'/ / 621°2G6°G$) LOE ¥¥8°LL$ uoheladQ Jo 1soD [BJoL  ©

0$ - (uoiezuOYINY pieOg Jayuny 03 J0algng) Ajjioey Buljokosy
000'G0¥'G$ - Aujoe4 ABisu3 o} )sepm x

(uononpal %S5 +9 /0007 186$) 000'G0P‘G$ - SuoHNQLIUOD BAJeseyY O
(esealoul %z°9 / 128°958°c$) L0€'6EY°99$ - 106png esuedx3g bujersdg o

- uoneltadQ Jo 1s0)

se84 umo| bunedoiued




1202 A4 Woly asealou|
%V°0C /52,.°€68°L$

06G'/G95°9t$ - S99 |esodsI(q JOqWIBI\ |BelO] e
eju e/u 00'601$ I
80°LL$ 76'89 $ 00°L01$ uoys | JalL
6089 $ $6°69 ¢ 00°S01L$ BuoT | Jal |
(s1s09
INQO 31dO [euonIPPY YIM) 994 |esodsiq
INQ 1dO [e30L 2202 Ad INQ 3dO eseq zzZ0zZ Ad pesodoid 220Z A4 jJoeIUOD
uol /00°£01L$ - 99 |esodsi(] aseg WIoHUN e
1202 A4 Wouj 8seaidul (% i) U0 9/G'gL B SP8dY O
8/0'Ch¥y -jeljo] = ©
00071 —(z Jo1]) @94 901N19S 28 ©
00Z'S —(Hoys | Jai] JusjeAinby) ajey sy O
8/8'GeY —(Buo | 4a11) pajunoosig dIABS O
8/0°cty - suo| ajebaibby e

Buipun4 1101y - SJUNOSI(] 99IAISS JO 1SO) + Uonesad JO1S0D BN ©

9re'60v LV$ - oseg ojey [B]o] e

S84 umo| bunedionied




20 e AR

uoj Jad 00’/ 1 $ Jo abieyaing uoisiaAl] bmHmE:wm_ sjenbg o
00°€69$ Jo @94 |esodsiq 10aJig Bunedioled UON ss87 ©
uo} Jad 00'0L}$ Jo BYUS |esodsiq Sjeulsly 0} gL pelewnsy ©
SUOISJBAI( e
paziioyine Ajjualind sallaAljdp ON O
Buljohosy e
uo} Jad gg¢ = aley abeiaay A\D| / JeineH puUgAH ©
21SEAA PIIOS [edioiunip| e

@ |

S99 umo| bunedidnied - UON




(aseaiul %0'2) £25 VE8'9ES -jeloy ©

(6S88BU[ %9 1) L8 262 | § - Jjopenuo) Ajjpe4 o

(sseaioul %0') /8€'9LY'ECS -300|g IBMOd O

(eseanu %.0) 9Z€'001 2} $ - BuIssa001d BISEM O

120Z A< Wolj 8se8I0U]| %0°Z
‘ ‘

€2s v€89¢$ - Aipioe4 Abisug o] yseld| e

zLe'ziozL $ -jejolL  ©

004 8¢ $ - 9|qISS@20Id-UON O

099°¢cLs8 $ - lesodsiq ysy ©

0ze'd $ - ssedAg a)sep) pllog  ©

000'SPY'L $ - My wou sjelIdy - ©

000°ey $ - uojbulj|g woi4 MSW  ©

0 $ - L#AaYY Woid MSW  ©

G96'829 $ — UMOMSJBA WOoI4 MSIN  ©

z2es‘zioL % - uojbuno] woi4 MSIN -~ ©

$ o

AN AA)] - X8ss3 woi4 MSI

1 20T Ad wolj uohonpay %0y

AR RARRAR

uoneuodsuel] 81SeA)\ e

120'861°2$ -leljop ' ©
€8€887 § - UMOMBJBAN O
L1Z'€09 $ -uojpulio]  ©
€82'06L $ -Xossgy O
0029L $ -uobulg ©

1202 A4 wolj 8sea.du| %e'0

11086L°C $ - SUONE)S JBJsurI| e

18bpng asuadx3 bunetadp




L0E'6EY 993

1202 Ad Wolj uononpay %6°0L

GE6'199°L$

aseauou| (%179) 041'0L1°9%

09v'cEL'LS

- 10bpng asuadx3 bunesadQ |e}O] e

GE6'1L99°L$
6%
L60°G9ECS
LYEEVELS
Z8S'0L¥'LS
GL6'C8Y'CS

09¥'ZEL'LS
SRR
0sv'90Z $
0 $
89z'9/L $
699°'coe $
ovz'zel $
££8'c92'9%

jejol

- JayuaD sdo peoy Aydinpy

— Soxe ]| pue S99 ‘JUsWSSasSsy
- [puuosiad UON 103Jig VHIN
—Jauuosiad 10811 YHIN
—uoneoo|ly 126png Aloyiny

Q0. 0.0 0 0

- 9suadx3 10alipu| e

jelol

— a)eqay Buljphoay

- sesuadx3 RO 108110 VHIN
- 4d/M 01 enpisay podsuel |
— UMOUBJBAA Wol4 podsuel |
- uo)Bunio | wol4 podsuels|

- X88s3 woi4 pyodsuel |

- sabuey) JojesadQ joesuo)d

Q170 0.0 0.0 G 0

- Apoe4 buljoAoay e

19bpng asuadx3 bunetad




000°06T‘S S |e10] 300|g J3MOd
000'SLE S swasAS JaY10
000°0S¢ S siieday 211S 9 Sulp|ing
000°0t7C S Wwo1sAs pasd g uig 198ny
000°00€ S juswaoe|day agn] yueg usn
000°'SZE S plingay 319 Jofe
000009 S juawade|day Seq g siieday Jolep asnoH Seg
S

000°00T°T s|aued agn] |jemialepn 2oejday
000°000°C S s1a1eaysadng Asepuodas/Aiewid adejday
101 (uondNpPal1 %S°LS / 000°620°LS) Aljided yd0|g 1amod

000'G0Y‘G$ — @dueusiule|y Jofejy e

000°STZ S |e10] Ar1j1oe4 Su1SS320.4d 91SEMN :
sl SHE e e e - 196pnq pejdope 1Z0z
00059 S siieday jooy . ; ;

e it A< Wou UoKoNpal %579 / 0007 18'6S IIE19A0  ©
101 { uondnpal %1°Z6 / 000°06%'2S) AM|1de4 3UISSad0id 1S\ uooo.mov.mw oJB SUOHNQLIUOD) [e]0] o

1obpng aoueusajuiel Jolepy / JuswaAoidw]




0 $

(802'726°'L) $

(uonezuoyiny pieog Jayund buipuad)
(250'602) $ - OAI8S9Y JO 3s [BUOHIPPY

"awooul uoisinig Auedoid ZzZ0zZ A4 lle jo uonnguisip pajewns3
(9g9'0212) $ - pun4 uonezljiqels sa4 dif SMSD  *

* papuaLWosal AUsLIND @i puny Siy} 0} SUOHNGUIUOD SMSD ON
"2Insodxa |B)0) 0] 8AlJR|8J JUBIOIYNS SB PAMBIA SI SIY |
‘puny SIY) Ul 000'08S'Z$ 10 Ssaoxe ul Ajuasald S| aiay )

0 $ - pun4 8ouelonas VYIN

"220Z A4 Jol papuswiuosal ale punj siy} 0] SLUOANGUIUOD ON
sasuadxa [eBa] SMSD [enoe Joud 0) uosuedwod Ul JUSIOYNS SB POMSIA SI SIY |
* puny syl Ui 000'8€9$ Jo sseoxa ut Apuasaud si aiey |

0 $ - pund [eba71 SMSD =

‘$8|qoNpap / WIS Ul 9SeaIoUl 0} Ale|a) S1enjeAs
‘sBulules Jsaiajul S}l | Z0Z A4 Wolj aseadu)
* pun} Sy} Ui 000‘968$ J0 Sseoxa ul Apuasald st a1ay |

0 $ - pund sty SMSO
000°GO¥'S $ - pun4 aoueusjuiepy Jofel\ SMSD  *
0 $ - pund juswanoldw| SMSD =

paule}ay pun4 jeiduas) SASO

- sUOINQLIUOY) BAIesSaY alojog awoou| bunessdQ

SUOIINQLIIUOY) BAISSOY




600°2L06°LL$
000§

uonoNpaY %9'29/ LEV'¥G0'6S
gLo‘ocevs

00S'vLES

UORONPRY %8 0Z / LL9'0LY'ES
960°CLeel$

€L0'0ee'y $
| BERC
0oL ¢
0 $
gle'sze'y $

00s'PLE $
00589 §
ooo'ovz $
0 $

]

(o gl i8] < B >3] =
e - C - e

960°CLZ'eL$
0057828 $
05.°122'E $
9¥8's0L'L $

- B8NUBASY 99 |esodsi UON |eloL

(seoa4 80IAI8S /1S8I8)U]) J1BYIO

-[ejoL

- @npisay snola4jodg  x

- SJuaWasINqWIdY UOISIBAIQ
- afieyoing uone)g Jajsuel)  x
-SJORJUOD M| B Jojney  x

- 81sep\A umo | Bunedionued UON

-S]ONpoId PBIan00aY JaylO B0  *

—S9jes [P’ -

— sassame ® Ayng jedounpyy - x
|e10)-gng Bulphosy  x

- 984 abeiayoliq Alljoe Bulphosy =
- s9|eg ssejo Aljoed buiphoay x

- s3jeS RIS\ Ajijioe Bulphoay  x
-onse|d sojes Aljoe bulphosy =

- sojeg Jaded Ajjoe Bulphoay  x

- 8994 di] umo] Bunedionied-uoN  x

- S]JONPOoI4 Palan0day 18yl

~ ey x

— o\ Wil [BOY x

SO lIsselD

— sjuswhed Aioedey  x

- sa|eg AbBisug

©)

o

0]

(0]

o




6€'29% 40 9181 1Z0Z A< Woy uo} Jad G1°0$ Aq pesesou) O
G °29% - Uoj Jod 180D |esodsiq Usy e

(%6°91) suo1 961‘9Z Aq peseasnag  ©
SUOCl 000‘6ZL - lesodsiq ol ysy o
%ZZ 9Z Woly paonpay O
%LL9C - 9]y uonodNpoId Ysy ol 4ay  *

0580100D (%F"L) UMY / GZ00'0$  ©
Umy /GLED'S - 80l4 ABJaug 10BIJJUOYD UON /10BIUOD o

0520109p (%G'LL) UMy UoljiW €5 ©

ymy 000°000°€92 - uononpoid Abisug e

uo} / ymy GG 'v€9 - 9)ey uoldNPOId HMM 01 4y

00026V -404 [ejol e
%%V 86 - 9)ey uononpold 40y 01 M\SIN |BJoL e
(esea108p %02} / U0) 00¥'20L) 001 '00S g - o] Vo
{("eseanur %0/ uoy 0) 000¢ - Ajing jedpunpy - ©
(ese®108p %0°¢S / U0} 8G5'6) L8Y'8 -(enpisay)jodg  ©
(ese8108p %6/ / UO) G06°LS) L¥0'SL -jejguogiayo  ©
(esea108p %629 / U0} 00S'ES) 00S'LE -joenuog Jojney  ©
(eseeuoul %ty / UOY €9G'8L) 8LO'EYY - Suo) sjebaibby, ©
001005 - SalBAllBQ MSIN [B1oL e

sl Ay ABlaug 0] a1Sep)




sJaAlI(] Aey ABlaug 0] a1Sep)




00589 $ L9¢L § 000°GL S8IeyS anuansy [BI9|\ [BIOL
000G $ 000LLS 009 s|ejo|\ @oueusiUle|\ pue desdos
00SY $ 0006 $ 09 Spoo9 SHYM
0006 $ 00°0¢ $ 00¢€ S|e}9N uing 3s0d
0 $ 0000 $ 0SLvL S|e}9|N uing ald

saieys anuaAay sjels|y Ayjoed 31M

000°9¥C$ [ejoL
0009 $ yoes 00°0¢$ SHun 00¢ sassaljle\
000°0tZ$ 00°02ZL$ Suo} 000°C e)sep Aving jedioiuniy

SJI9ALI(] A8Y S1ONPOIH PaIBA0ldDy




Section 2



ATTACHMENT 5
RESOLUTION FOR THE MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REGARDING ADOPTION OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2022 PROPERTY DIVISION OPERATING AND CAPITAL
BUDGETS

WHEREAS, The Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority ("Authority") maintains a Property Division
for certain revenue producing assets not in service to its Connecticut Solid Waste System; and

WHEREAS, The Authority has previously established certain reserve funds for the retention, transfer and
use of its Property Division income consistent with its statutory purposes which reserve funds currently
include, but are not limited to, a Tip Fee Stabilization Fund intended to be drawn upon by the
Connecticut Solid Waste System (CSWS) during periods of relatively low Non-Disposal Fee Revenue, and
subsequently refunded contingent on future CSWS financial performance, as a means to mitigate
inflationary pressures on CSWS solid waste disposal fees, a Property Division Improvement Fund, Jets

Major Maintenance Fund, MIRA Severance Fund, Property Division General Fund and CSWS
Improvement Fund; and

WHEREAS, The Authority annually adopts a Property Division Operating and Capital Budget and directs

the distribution of its Property Division income to such funds in support of CSWS and Property Division
operations and its other organizational needs; and

WHEREAS, The Authority anticipates that declining CSWS Non Disposal Fee Revenue, the operational
performance of the CSWS Resource Recovery Facility and required transition to a new operating
agreement for the CSWS Recycling Facility will continue to put added pressure on CSWS tip fees in
connection with the development of its Fiscal Year 2022 operating and capital budgets necessitating
additional contributions to the CSWS Tip Fee Stabilization Fund.

NOW THEREFORE, be it

RESOLVED: That the Fiscal Year 2022 Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority Operating and Capital
Budgets for the Property Division attached hereto as Exhibit A be adopted substantially in the form as
presented in Exhibit B attached hereto and discussed at this meeting; and

FURTHER RESOLVED: That effective with the disbursement of receipts for the period ending July 31,
2021 and continuing through and including the disbursement of receipts for the period ending June 30,
2022, the Board of Directors authorizes $7,170,656 in Property Division receipts remaining within the
Property Division Clearing Account after disbursement to the Property Division Operating STIF to be
transferred directly to the CSWS Tip Fee Stabilization Fund in lieu of the Property Division General Fund,
and the heretofore established maximum Tip Fee Stabilization Fund value is hereby increased by the
amount of such transfers. Management is directed to report monthly to the Board on the status of such

transfers to the Tip Fee Stabilization Fund which shall not exceed $7,170,656 during this period without
further Board authorization.



Exhibit A - Page 1

Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority

FY 2022 Proposed Draft Operating Budget

Property Division

FY 2020 Variance FY 2021 FY 2022 Better (Worse) Than FY 2021
REVENUES Budget Actual Better (Worse) Adopted Proposed S %
Use of Reserves 5 S S S 389,000 | $ S (389,000} n/a
Operating Revenue:
Jets Electric:
Capacity Payments S 12,273828 | $ 12,451,450 | $ 177,622 | S 9,340,464 | § 8,128,655 | $ (1,211,809)] -13.0%
VARS Payments $ 50,400 | $ 38,229 | $ (12,171)} $ 39,108 {§ 382113 (897) -2.3%
Reserve Credits S 600,000 | $ 795,742 | $ 195,742 | $ 600,000 |$ 600,000 $ - 0.0%
Real Time Energy $ 300,000 | $ 165,253 | $  (134,747)| § 200,000 | § 450,000 | $ 250,000 125.0%
Total Jets Zlectric S 13,224228 (S 13450674 | % 226,446 | S 10,179,572 |$  9,216865|S  {962,706) -9.5%
Lease Income:
CSWS Murphy Road S . $ 5 $ S - ST n/a
Golf Center $ 19,965 | $ 19,965 | $ $ 19,965 |5 19965 $ 0.0%
Wheelabrator Lease s 431,348 | § 456,949 | $ 25,601 | $ 456,949 |§ 456949 | $ 0.0%
Jets Billboard s 45350 | § 45,350 | $ - s 45350 |6 45350 $ - 0.0%
Total Lease Income S 496,663 | $ 522,264 | $ 25,601 | $ 522,264 | S 522,264 | $ 0.0%
Interest Income B 150,000 | $ 293,432 | § 143,432 | $ 300,000 | § 250,000 | $ (50,000  -16.7%
Total Operating Revenue $ 13.870.891|$ 14,266,370 | $ 395479 |$ 11,001,836 |5 9,989,130 | $  (1,012,706) -9.2%
TOTAL REVENUES AND USE OF RESERVES| $ 13,870,891 | $ 14,266,370 | $ 395479 | $ 11,390,836 | $ 9,989,130 | $  (1,401,706)] -12.3%
EXPENDITURES
MIRA Total Allocated Costs $ 805,844 | $ 747,226 | $ 58,618 | § 841,375 $ {1,001) -0.1%
MIRA Non-Personnel Services $ 247,169 | $ 341,010 | $ (93,841)] $ 286,065 | § $ 72,205 25.2%
Railroad Maintenance 5 10,500 | 10,050 | § 450 | $ 10,500 | § | S 0.0%
211 Murphy Road Ops. Center $ - s 5 - s - | S - n/a
171 Murphy Road $ 26,915 | § 14,556 | $ 12,359 | § 27,015 |/ 15 (200) -0.7%
Jets Operating Charges 5 201789815 1,376,983 |% 640,915 | $ 2,044,137 |'§ 1s 319,614 15.6%
TOTAL ACCRUED EXPENDITURES| $ 3,108,326 | $ 2,489,825 | § 618,501 | S 3,209,092 | $ 2,818,474 | 390,618 12.2%
OPERATING INCOME $ 10,762,565 | $ 11,776,545 | $ 1013980 | $ 7,792,744 | $  7.170,656 | S  (622,088) -8.0%
Use of jets Major Maintenance Reserve S - S S S 389,000 | § - S (389,000)} -100.0%
INCOME AND USE OF RESERVES $_10762,565 | $ 11,776,545 | $ 1,013,980 [ S 7,792,744 [ $ 7,170,656 | S  (622,088) -8.0%
DISTRIBUTION OF INCOME
MIRA Severance 5 800,000 | 5 800,000 | $ $ $ n/a
Jets Major Maintenance Reserve S - S S - S #DIV/0!
PD Improvement Fund $ 200,000 | § 200,000 | S 5 < | 3 S #DIV/0!
Tip Fee Stabilization Fund $ 8,700,000 S 9,600,000 | $ 900,000 | $ 5,000,000 | § 7,170,656 |S 2,170,656 43.4%
General Fund (Net) S 1062565 |S 1,244,077 | S 181,512 | § 2,792,744 $ (2,792,744}l  -100.0%
TOTALDISTRIBUTIONS| 5 10,762,565 | $ 11,844,077 | $ 1,081,512 |$ 7,792,744 | $ 7170656 | $  (622,088) -8.0%
SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) * $ 5 (67,532)] $ (67,532)] S $ S n/a

* Actuol Distribution of PD Operating Income shown for FY 2020 reflects execution of the flow of funds procedure undertaken to fund each months
budget in advance. The actual surplus / deficit shown for FY 2020 represents both i) the difference between accrual based income and monthly
advance cash distributions, and ii) the accumulation of funds within the Property Division general fund and operating accounts due to budget versus

actual expenditure variance.



pUSJ| SWODU| UOISIAIQ A1iodolq <

QdurUIUIEL
Jole}] @ syuswaroiadwy [eider) «

asuadxg SunesadQ |e10] <
anuaAdYy sunesadQ |e10] «
SIYSIYSIH <

323png 3e(] AJBIIWNG <

AN3IWLOTIAIA

L Cara 139and Iviidvod
0202 ANV ONILYN3d0
e ZZ0Z ¥V3A 1VvIOSid

Spa9N judwabeuepy
23seM plios jedidiuniy
pue BusAoay
S3IND13O23UU0D
10j suondp 2iqnd
‘3809 33N Buunsug

ALNMOHLNY SNITOAD3Y
ANV NOILVAONNI STVI431VI - 9 LI9dIHX3



9590212 $ - SI9JSUB| / SOAIISDY [€I0] <«
9590L1LS - - punj uoneziiqess 334 dif <
0$ - pung juswaAoidw] SAASD <
0$ - pung uawaroidw qd  «
0$ - 9AJDSDY ddoUBUSIUIEL JOfRL SI3f <
0$ - pung [B4BURD) OJd <«
0¢$ - DAJOSDY DDUEBISASS VY| <«

:SPUNJ JO MOJ4 7707 A4 uolsiaig Ariadoud «

999°0L1°L$ - awodu| Sunesado «
v/¥'8187C$ | - sasuadx3y SunesadQ [e10] <«
0€£1°686'6% - S9NUAARY 3unesadQ |e10] <

135dNg 14vVdd AdVINIWNS



"1 707 A4 WoJj aulpap %0'g ue syuasaidau swodu| 3unesad ul uoljjiw /|°L$ <

‘sasuadxe 3upesado yy|| Ul 9BuByd OoN «

((%1°7) 98€'91¢$ aseauoul sadseyd Sunesedo 10BN STYN <

(%€°€€) 000'9€€$ 40 93pnq [ony 39 03 BsBANDg <
Bundapaa (%9°G1) ¥19'61£$ Aq auipap sedueyd Bunesedo s13[ <

-a8eaaa0d Ayijide4 A84aug 03 33sBAA [N} WOy Aeme uonisued) dueansul A3aadoad o3 anp Ajuewid <«
(%767 S0TTLS Aq aseaudap [puuosiad uou 109.Ip WYl <
“(%1°0) 100°1$ Aq aseauour [puuosiad 10a.1p pue 193png A1lIOYINy paledOjly <

198pNq 770T Ad 02 1T0T Ad Woy (%T°T1) 819°06€$ Aq duidap sasuadxy SunesadQ <

*$33J 352431U1 YUM SUlUIDSp SWODU] 1S2URIU] <
"9NUSAS. 3SB3| Ul d3UBYD ON <
"PU | 70T A4 2US.1IND S1D34 S3|eS ASJOUD DWW [BDJ Ul ISBAIDU| 4

"T1 WD4 42pun £9°4¢ 01 | | D4 Japun yiuow nemo|n| Jad 7¢7'5¢ wouy auipap sauswked Apeded s1of <

123pnq 7Z0T Ad ©3 1707 Ad Wol (%T'6) S0£°T10°1$ Aq dulpap sanuaray BunessdO <

SLHOIMHOIH



0€1°686'6%
0000SC $

$9TTLS ¢

99891T'6%

PITTLS $
s9%6l $
ose'syk  $
6¥695F $
9989176 $
11¢8t $
00005+ $
000'009 ¢
999'8718 $

- anuaAdYy SunesadQ |e10] <

- 3WOdU| I153J431U|

- asea (340da3puig)

- jaao|.

- J2IUdD) J|0D)
- paeoqig $33(
J01BIqRISIYAA

A A A A

|

- Aasadoug Y0 «

- |0l

- s;UaWIAed YVA

- dwi | [eay

- 3WI | 9AIISDY

- 1y Aadeden) paemiod

A A A A A

-519[ WOJj UONIBIBUID) DIIIIDT <«

INNIATY ONILYYIJO TVLOL



siz'Le $
00501 $
SITLT $

SIL'LE $

098'€1T$
oogsl $
000 $
09sc61$

098°€1T$

9/£'TH8%
769°0C1$
80£°T91$
9££°655$

9LETH8S

-Ausdoud JspO W0 «
- 9dUBUIUIEL] PEOJIRY <
- peoy Aydunpy 121«

- WRO Auadoud a3 «

- JouUUOSIad UON WAl ;o] «
-y <«
- [e897

- (wniwaud Auiadoud uonjw |¢ jo uonuod paiedoj|e Buipndul) ADUBINSU| <

- S9DIAIDG [SUUOSIA UON] 199410 VYIW <«

- 51507 P10y [B30 ]

- SOIIAIDG [PUUOSIDG 131

- SADIAIG [2UUOSI34 UON - 393png Aaoyany
- $3IIAJDG [UUOSIR - 293png Aadoyany

-§1502) Pa1B20||Y VI <

A A A A

ISN3IdX3 ONILVHEIdO TVLIOL



v/'818T$ asuadxg 8upnesadQ [e10] <

£TSYTL1$ 009°6€6 $ £26'¥8L $ asuadx3 Sunesado g0l
SS1°20L $ 009°£9C $ §SS'6€F $  PauruauER) B suonessdO
s ¢ 0 $ w68 $ snuog aAuaduj aakojdwzy
LTE0S1 $ 0 $ LTE0S1 $ PeSYISAQ % J0qET 133417
759'99 ¢ 0 $ 759'99 $ woddng 2230 awoH
L9v611 $ 0 $ [9%'611 $  SA1UADU| pue 994 Juswaseuey,
000T£9% 000T£9% 0 $ PPEd UiMm] 0} [ang

jejol poje|ay Joe43uod)

VHIW S3VN | osuadxg Sunesado

TSYLL1S - W80 s13[ «

3SN3dX3 DNILVYH3IdO 1VIOL




pun4 uonezijiqeig 234 di| 01 paiedipap awodu| SunesadQ uoisiaiq Aruadoud 7ZoZ Ad IV

‘uoisialq Araadouy
S\YIW O3 pausdisse s1asse Jayao 4o} pajnpayds ; pasodoud aue s333foud oN

"9AJDSDY ddUBUAUIR Jolel SI3[ 03 UonNQgIIUOD) JBYylund ON|
"000'820°1$ S! 2AJas2y 2ourU3UIR), JOlEl SI9[ 9Y3 Ul ddUE[Rq JUBLIND)

‘lercadde paeog
34n1nj 01 123[qns 9AJas3Y adurUIUIR], Jolely s13[ unsixa Byl Wody papuny
3q |m 39 ay3 jo Adeded aya Suiaiasaud o3 pasedipap s1da(oad pasodoud Auy

IDONVNILINIVIA
YOIVIN 7 SINTWNIAOYIWI TVLIdVD




LFOTA

WO

AN3YL FWODINI NOISIAIA ALH3dOHd



Section 3



ATTACHMENT 6
RESOLUTION FOR THE MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REGARDING ADOPTION OF THE FISCAL YEAR 2022 LANDFILL DIVISION OPERATING BUDGET

RESOLVED: That the Fiscal Year 2022 Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority Operating Budget for

the Landfill Division attached hereto as Exhibit A be adopted substantially in the form as presented and
discussed at this meeting.



MIRA - LANDFILL DIVISION

REVENUES
ACTUAL ADOPTED PROPOSED
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION FY20 FY21 FY22
51-001-000-43101 Electricity Sales to the City of Hartford $ 67,545 § 67,005 $ 66,673
51-001-000-43106 ZREC/Energy Payments from Eversource $ 116,203 § 163,790 § 162,979
51-001-000-xxxxx Miscellaneous Income $ 133,300 §$ 23,000 $ 53,237
51-001-000-46101 Interest Income $ 7913 % - $ -
Total Revenues $ 324,960 $ 253,795 % 282,889
EXPENDITURE DETAILS
ACTUAL ADOPTED PROPOSED
ACCOUNT DESCRIPTION FY20 FY21 FY22
51-001-501-xxxxx MIRA Operating Expenses k) 315 % 3900 % 3,900
51-001-501-52856 Legal $ 3,192 § 10,000 § 10,000
51-001-501-52611 ZREC Income Share with City of Hartford $ 58,101 § 55,646 § 55,166
51-001-501-52640 Insurance Premium $ 40,321 $ 55,559 % 61,800
51-001-501-52701 Contract Operating Charges $ (6,410) $ 15270 § 15,270
51-001-501-52875 Insurance Consulting & Brokerage $ 2363 $ 2,480 $ 3,321
51-001-501-56605 Construction $ 11,603 § - $ -
51-001-501-57871 Authority Budget Allocation BOD $ 79,074 $ 82,633 $ 79,158
Total Expenditures $ 188,558 § 225,488 $ 228,615
NET INCOME/(LOSS) $ 136,402 $ 28,307 $ 54,274
51-001-501-57871 Resource Rediscovery * $ 542,872 $ s $

* FY20 Resource Rediscovery reflects legal, consulting, and other expenses related to the redevelopment of the Waste Processing Facility.



Section 4



RESOLUTION FOR THE MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS

REGARDING APPROVING THE FISCAL YEAR 2022 AUTHORITY BUDGET

WHEREAS, The Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority (MIRA) is contractually obligated to adopt
Disposal Fees for its Connecticut Solid Waste System {(CSWS) participating towns on or before February

28, 2021, which fees will apply during MIRA’s Fiscal Year 2022 which begins July 1, 2021 and ends June
30, 2022; and

WHEREAS, such Disposal Fees are to reflect the net cost of operation of the CSWS as defined in the
Municipal Service Agreements between CSWS member towns and MIRA, which net cost of operation

includes a properly allocable share of MIRA’s general administrative expenses commonly known as the
“Authority Budget”; and

WHEREAS, in order for MIRA to progress timely with the evaluation and establishment of Disposal Fees
for the CSWS it is necessary for MIRA to adopt the Authority Budget for Fiscal Year 2022 at this time
including the budget for personnel and non-personnel services that comprise MIRA’s general
administrative expenses and the amounts thereof that are properly allocable to MIRA projects and
divisions that will be active during Fiscal Year 2022 including:

1. Connecticut Solid Waste System (CSWS)
2. Property Division
3. Llandfill Division

NOW THEREFORE, be it

RESOLVED: That the Fiscal Year 2022 Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority Operating Budget

attached hereto as Exhibit A be adopted substantially in the form as presented and discussed at this
meeting.



Materists Innavation and Recycling Authority

' = o “ T EXHIBIT A
{ » © November 18, 2020 Board of Director's Meeting
| e’ U

Draft Proposed Total Personnel Services Budget

R . Draft Proposed Authority Budget

FY 2022 Proposed Increase or (Decrease) From

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2020 Actual FY 2021 Adopted
Actual Adopted Proposed S % S %
Personnel Services
Charged Direct to Projects S 1,396,884 | $ 1,736,132 S 1,591,274 | S 194,390 | 13.9%| S (144,858)| -8.3%
Indirect via Authority Budget | § 2,823,174 | § 2,560,718 | $ 2,545236 | $ (277,938)] -9.8%| S (15,482)] -0.6%
Total S 4,220,058 | $ 4,296,850 | S 4,136,510 | S (83,548)| -2.0%|S (160,340)] -3.7%
Authority Budget
Indirect Personnel Services $ 2,823,174 |S 2,560,718 | S 2,545,236 | S (277,938)] -9.8% S (15,482)] -0.6%
Non Personnel Services S 589,977 |5 724,310 | S 738,521 (S 148,544 | 25.2%|S 14,211 2.0%
Total S 3,413,151 | S 3,285,028 | $ 3,283,757 | S (129,394) -3.8%| S (1,271)| -0.04%
Combined Personnel and Non
Personnel Services $ 4,810,035|S 5,021,160 | $ 4,875,031 | S 64,996 1.4%| S (146,129)] -2.9%

| Personnel Services

The FY 2022 total draft proposed Personnel Services budget of $4,136,510 reflects policy and direction received at the October 14,
| 2020 OS&HR Committee meeting. The proposed budget reflects a 2.0% decrease in comparison to FY 2020 actual audited Personnel

i

Services and a 3.7% decrease from the FY 2021 adopted budget for Personnel Services. The draft proposed budget funds all salary, |
salary related and benefits for all budgeted MIRA positions (29 permanent and 1 temporary). The proposed budget includes enhanced
"Unassigned MPA Adjustments" sufficient to fund merit or market progression increases and excludes COLA or "Accross the Board"

increases.

Medical benefit costs are budgeted based on current actual premiums effective October 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 plus escalation

of 6.5% applied for FY 2022. Dental, vision and life / ADD are based on current premiums effective January 1, 2020 through December |
31, 2020 plus escalation of 10%, 4.5% and 4.5% applied for FY 2022, respectiveley. There is no proposed increase in current employee |

cost shares for medical and dental. Employee cost shares are subject to review during open enroliment.

The draft Personnel Services budget is segregated between positions allocated direct to projects and divisions and indirect positions 5
allocated through the Authority Budget. Direct allocation is used when positions are dedicated solely to a specific project / function |

{CSWS scale operator positions being a good example). Indirect allocations are used when positions serve all projects and divisions |

(finance and accounting positions being a good example).
Authority Budget

The draft proposed Authority Budget comprises the indirect portion of the Personnel Services budget described above and all Non
Personnel Services not directly associated with a specific project or division. Non Personnel Services include such expenses as office
rent, office supplies, postage and printing, temporary services, insurance, brokerage, information technology and consulting. The
proposed Non Personnel Services budget of $738,521 reflects a 25.2% increase from FY 2020 actual audited expenses and a 2.0%
increase from the FY 2021 budget. See Exhibit 2 for the breakdown of Non Personnel Services which has been developed to reflect FY
2022 requested spending. The Non Personnel Services budget excludes funding for "Resource Rediscovery" activities. The total
proposed Authority Budget for FY 2022 is $3,283,757 which represents a 3.8% reduction from FY 2020 actual expenses and a modest

0.04% decrease from the FY 2021 budget. See Exhibits 3 and 4 for the allocation of the Authority Budget and direct Personnel Services
to the CSWS, Property and Landfill divisions.

FY 2022 combined personnel and non-personnel services of $4,875,031 reflects a 1.4% increase in comparison to FY 2020 actual
expenses and reflects a 2.9% reduction in comparison to the FY 2021 budget.

Page 1 of 5 pages




1esodatg
YR T7AS

paidopy 1ZAd 18OV 0TAA RODY 4T ENOYRIAS 1MMIVLTAA

000°005°€$

y - 000°0SL'E$

- ©000'000'48

- - 000°0ST¥S$

000°005'¥$

000°0SL'¥$

000°000'S$

000'0$2'S$

sasuadxy $adAIIS [UUOSId TZAM - LIAI VIIIA

(96£°8%0°7) $ 9RZ'LEOLT § 789°580°67 $ oL
(60Z°8L1) § [%9¢°0- 860'0ZTY § |%8T T~ L9T86EY § 0TAL
(286°957) S |%91°¢- 66L'EVTY § |%STT- 18L00St § 61Ad
(620°22) L 1%9¥'T 9T TREY $ |%00°E- SLTYO9Y § 81Ad
(6bt'69%) §{%ETTI-  €SO0°LLTY § %8 6 08°9bLY § LTAd
(680°1L€) 8 (%PEE 8SLTLYY § |%ET9- LY8'EVTS $ 9IAI
(8£9°05¢) B TLE1H0S § 010°765°S § S1Ad
jonowry RqPuU] junoury R Puf g&oﬂ< JeI A
DUIILI| [enpy 1dpng BISLY

VLIV SOSUAA LADANE - N

SRIVAWNOD TV OO LSIH

PARS WOFC091) S OISOEl § 0SR96Z+ § SIIIAYAS TANNOSHAJ TVIOL
%0070 - S O0RIF % DORIF 5 SI150) paERN-IAuag 1030 [6103qNS
%000 - § 00o<c  § 000ec S STRIINOI MONEASTUIWPY STFSUSE
%%00'0 - $ 00811 $ 00811 $ wrensuo) () 10y
%00°0 d $ 000 $ 000L $ sigauRg Y0
%CH g (nsL) S C801 5§ S9'11 B SSAUIM
% bl €IPPE) S 1L696L § PSCIER  § S150D Syyouag 3akoidwy [er0iq
%00°001- (288'S) S - S L8RS g (IN0&R, Td 29M |) UOANGLIUOD N-10¥
%8€°S (€491 § €£9%68C S 90190 (Arereg ren3ay) uonnqrauo) §-10¥
%TE T (€s0'z1)  § LEE'L0S § 16€61C & 1800 SWAUAE [ESH 12N
%94t 909'T $ {SAI'TE) ¢ (IoR'FS)  § LSUONNQUIUO)) [RIUA(T % [RIIPAW pafojdwy
%S$°T (099°b1) § T€5'65¢  § T6I'MLS S S1S00) SIYAUSE YIESH [TI0L,
%000 . S FID®C s PIDRT S n0-1dQ RPN
%19°€- (852) $  688°0 § LhlL $ HUOISIA
%b6'9- (LL'D) § c6I'LE  § S966E  § +AN[1qesI( pue Y]
%EET (0€91)  § LE¥L8F § L9066Y & S[BUSQ % [BIPAN
%0000 - $ $ - $ uognQLIuOY) VSH
] A i
AT (LLI'STI)  § FO898CC § IFOTIFE § SIS0 JOQRT [€30IqnS
%60 (oI7el) & 568812 S OUIZ€C S
%00°001 (101°6) $ - S OI01°€ $ moked 1d JooM 1
AT (0ze'n) 5 opI6l s o090z § uonesuaduio) awkoidwaun 1O
2606 '€ (504'9) § 8SLUST S p9I'P9L  § Armaag [e190g
%RE S (68€°7) S L66TY S C8E'th $ XE, 3IRJIPAN
%S¢ (196111 § 696L90°C § DER6LIE S
%00°001- (L988S) ¢ - $ L98'8S S MOARJ Td Jo9M 1
%00°0 - § 0000¢ § 0000€ S (reak 10ud uodn paseq) [J0IAed SWIIAQ
%SHEET S€0'0L  § SE€0'00T  § 000°0€ S swatmsn{py YJA paudisseun
%00°001 c § - g - $ SASEAIO] [004 [RISUSD) / SN
%0t (6Z1'€T1)  § PEE'LEET § ¥I0'190°€ § [01Aeg rejnday
HIZLLP
23q/5u] % amaspq  pasodord zZXd PAadopy [ZXA SIDIAIIG [PBTOSIA [€10],

1LADANG ADTAUIS TANNOSIA TVIOL
TVSOdOdd LAVIA 70T A4

ALNOHLAY ONI'TOADTY ANV NOLLVAONNI STVIIZLVIN

[ LI9IHXA

Page 2 of 5 pages



EXHIBIT 2

MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY

FY 2022 PROPOSED

TOTAL NON PERSONNEL SERVICES BUDGET

Increase or {Decrease) From

ACTUAL ADOPTED § PROPOSED FY 2020 Actual FY 2021 Adopted
Description FY20 FY2! FY?22 ) % S %

Postage and Delivery Fees $ 71581 % 8,500 % 9700 1§ 2,542 36%| § 1,200 14%
Telecommunications $ 475151 % 495001 % 53,500 1% 5,985 3%} $ 4,000 8%
Copicr $ 4694 1% 44001 % 43001 ¢ (394 -8%]| $ (100) 2%
Printing Services 3 489 1 § 3,250 1 % 1,250 $ 761 155%; $ (2,000) -62%
Advertising - Legal Notices/Recruitment $ 1,595 1 % 6,400 | $ 6,000 {$ 4,405 276%] % (400) -6%
Customer Service $ - $ - $ $ - 100%] % - 100%
Office Supplies $ 3.8171% 6,500 1% 5500 (8% 1,683 44%1 $  (1,000) -15%
Protect Clothing/Satety Equipment b - $ - $ $ - 100%] $ - 100%
Miscellaneous Services $ 2,591 1§ 55001 % 55001 % 2,909 112%] § - 0%
Subscript/Publ/Ref. Material $ 1,373 1 $ 4,500 1 % 3610183 2237 163%] $ (890) -20%
Ducs-Professional Organizations $ 46221 % 64701 % 603518 1,413 31%] $ (435) “T%
Business Meetings and Travel 3 1,081 1% 32001 % 315018 2,069 192%1 $ (50 2%
Training % 5241 % 4,100 1 $ 2,000 1% 1,476 282%] $ (2,100) -51%
Payroll Software Services $ 13,196 1 % 15,000 1 $ 15000 1% 1,804 14%] $ - 0%
Record Retention Services $ 6,801 % 700018 7,400 | $ 599 9%] $ 400 6%
Mileage Reimbursement $ 430 | § 950 | $ 5001 % 70 16%] $ (450) -47%
Vehicle Repair/Maintenance $ % 750 [ $ $ 100%! $ (750)] -100%
Office Equipment Service 3 - 3 - 100%] $ - 100%
Building Operations 3 13418 1,600 | § 1,000 | § 866 644%1 § 0%
Insurance Claims/Losses $ - $ - 100%] $ - 100%
Bad Debt Expense $ $ - 100% 8 . - 100%
Rent $ 197574 1% 1985901 % 202,576 |% 5,002 3% $ 3,986 2%
Fuel for Vehicles $ - 13 300 | $ R - 100%] $ (300)]  -100%
Temporary Agency Services $ 18,200 | $ 4,000 | $ 4,000 | $ (14,200) -78%} $ - 0%
[nsurance Premiums $ 11754118 1150001 8% 1167001 % (841) -1%1 $ 1,700 1%
Information Technology Consultant $ 7091 % 10,400 1 $ 5600 [ § 4,891 690%] $ (4,800) -46%
Infonmation Technology Maintenance $ RIEER 70,4001 % 99,100 1 § 27,981 39%{ $ 28,700 41%
Legal Fees $ 12,965 1 § 45,000 | $ 45,000 1§ 32,036 247%] $ - 0%
Auditor $ 4300018 75000 % 75000 % 32,000 74%| $ - 0%
Insurance Consulting/Brokerage $ 6,246 | $ 9,000 % 2,100 | § (4,146) -66%] $ (6,900) -71%
Engineering, Technology & Consulting $ 1156718 21,6008 17,000 ] $ 5433 47%1 $  (4,600) 21%
Vehicles $ b 100%} $ 100%
Office Furniture 3 $ - 100% $ - 100%
Coraputer Hardware $ 8,330 | §  2835001% 32,000(% 23670 284%1 § 3,500 12%
Computer Software $ 6,309 1 % 9,500 1 % 2,500 1% (3,809) -60% $ (7,000) ~714%
Debt Service - Principal 3 - $ - 100%] $ 100%
Other Equipment $ - £} 25001 8% 2,500 1% 2,500 100%] § - 0%
Trustee / Bank Fees $ 3981 % 75001 3% 10,000 | $ 9,602 2413%1 § 2,500 33%
Resource Rediscovery $ $ $ 3 - 100%1 $ 100%
Operational Contingency $ - ¥ - $ - $ 100%} $ - 100%

Subtotal Nou-Personnel Services| $ 589,977 1§ 724310 | $ 738,521 1§ 148,544 25%1 $ 14211 2%

Page 3 of 5 pages




%000°00T %0000 %0000 %ITY'T %LL6'TT %IT9'SL 3unydiam paasnipy [e101L
%00°00T %00°00T %0000T %00°00T %00°00T 3unysiap aAnejnwn)
%ST %0°0 %00 %00 %TT %6'E€C FuUnuFPM paIsnipY
%0°S¢ %0°ST %0°S %0°ST %0°'SC Funydiem
%001 %00 %00 28e1Ud219d
vi Yy, 398png 7Z Ad SUB|EAIND3 3wl (I
%ST %00 %00 Sunudsm passnipy
%0°'ST %0°'ST %0°SC %0°ST %0°S2 dunysiam
%00T %00 %00 EEBUERIEN
092 T [BNIdY OZ Ad SuORJesuel]
%ST %00 %00 i Sunyusiap, paisnipy
%0°'ST %0°ST %0°S1 %0°ST %0°ST Funysiom
%00T %0°0 %00 %E Y %9°99 %T'6C E:SUERIEY]
06609 I ROea e s Y e T A |EMI0Y OZAJ S19SSY 1UaLIN) (€10
%ST %0°0 %00 %T'0 %8BT %LCT Juaudiam parsnipy
%0°ST %0°ST %0°'ST %0'ST %0°GT dunysim
%00T %00 %0'0 - %e'0 i EEISUERIEN
08Z'vL e ABEE SIEEEE S | SE0BaT S| 1endv 0zAd S9nuasdy 3unelad (el0L
%0T %00 %00 %00 %00 %001 JunySism paisnipy
%0°0T %0°0T %0°0T %0°0T %001 SunySism
%001 %00 %0°'0 %00 %00 %0001 98e1uad1dd
1598 Y DA ="y 0cAd SeusniSq Suipkoay
%0T %00 %00 %00 %0'0 %0°0T Sunysiem parsnipy
%0°0T %0°0T %0°0T %0°0T %0°0T SunySiom
%00T %0°0 %0°0 %00 _________[%00 %0001 a8e1uadiad
€665 G ) = |en1oY 0ZAd SUOL MSIN
jeioL 3loid uod-pIN 1seaynos UOISIAIQG [jypue]

{s1unowy ¢ uo paniwo go0)
135ang ZZoZA4

NOISIAIQ / 1237O¥d A8 ADOT0AOHLIW NOILYIOTIV 3SNIdXT 1DIHIANI AYVINIYd VHIN
ALIMOHINY ONI12A234 ANY NOILVAONNI STVIHILVW
€ 119IHX3

Page 4 of 5 pages



EXHIBIT 4

MATERIALS INNOVATION AND RECYCLING AUTHORITY

FY 2022 PROPOSED

ALLOCATION OF AUTHORITY BUDGET & DIRECT PERSONNEL SERVICES

Total Authority Budget $ 3,283,757
Indirect Allocation Authority Budget
Project / Division Benchmarked Percent Allocation
Mid-Connecticut 0.000%] $ -
Southeast Project 0.000%] $ -
Landfill Division 2.411%] § 79,158
Property Division 21.977%] $ 721,684
CSWS 75.612%| § 2,482,915
Total Authority Budget 100.000%| $ 3,283,757
Total Direct Personnel Services $ 1,591,274

Direct Personnel Service Allocation

Project / Division Function FY 2022 Budget
Mid-Connecticut $ -
Southeast Project $
Landfill Division $ -
Property Division Operations Staff - Jets $ 120,692
CSWS Operations Staff - CSWS $ 1,470,582
Total Direct Personnel Services $ 1,591,274
Combined Authority Budget and Direct Personnel Services $ 4,875,031

Overall Total

Project / Division Allocation Percent Allocated Cost
Mid-Connecticut 0.00%| $
Southeast Project 0.00%]| $ .
Landfill Division 1.62%] $ 79,158
Property Division 17.28%] $ 842,376
CSWS 81.10%j $ 3,953,497
Total Direct Personnel Services 100.00%! $ 4,875,031

Page 5 of 5 pages



Section 5



Key Activities to be undertaken by MIRA during its Fiscal Year 2022

During FY2022 MIRA will perform oversight and management of six solid waste and power plant
facility O&M contracts; MSW delivery contracts with 31 waste hauling companies; municipal
service agreements with 48 municipalities; contracts with various engineering, legal services, and
auditing companies; and contracts with solid waste recycling and disposal companies (e.g., ferrous
metal, ash residue). MIRA staff will operate weigh scales, inspect solid waste deliveries for
conformance with contractual and environmental regulatory requirements, and manage waste flows
within MIRA’s CSWS. Additionally, MIRA will manage environmental regulatory compliance for
54 permits, licenses, registrations, orders, and other authorities associated with its Connecticut Solid
Waste System (CSWS) Resource Recovery Facility, its three active transfer stations, its one dormant
transfer station, its single stream recycling facility, and its jet turbine facility.

In addition to these annual operational responsibilities, MIRA will undertake the initiatives
described in A through D below during its Fiscal Year 2022.

A. Submittal of a Solid Waste Permit Modification Application in order to conduct

Transfer of Municipal Solid Waste at MIRA’s Resource Recovery Facility in
Hartford

By correspondence dated July 8, 2021, DEEP stated its reasoning for why it believes that MIRA
must modify its solid waste operating permit in order to conduct transfer of MSW at its Resource
Recovery Facility in Hartford. Although MIRA does not necessarily agree with DEEP’s
positions on this matter, MIRA is proceeding to assemble and submit to DEEP a Permit
Modification Application in order to receive authority to conduct MSW transfer activities at its
Hartford Resource Recovery Facility (“RRF”)

As discussed below, MIRA anticipates that it will suspend combustion activities at its RRF on or
about June 30, 2022; MIRA hopes to have received authority from DEEP to conduct transfer
activities so that such transfer activities can begin at that time.

Permit Modification versus Minor Permit Amendment

In DEEP’s July 8, 2021 correspondence to MIRA, DEEP offered two pathway’s forward for
MIRA to obtain authority to transfer MSW at its Hartford RRE. The Option 1 pathway was

offered as the same approach that Covanta used when it sought authority from DEEP to conduct
MSW transfer activities at its Wallingford RRF.

Notably, DEEP accepted and processed the Covanta Wallingford application as a Minor Permit
Amendment in accordance with 22a-209-4(f) rather than as a Permit Modification. A Minor
Permit Amendment application fee is $940 versus $30,250 for a RRF Permit Modification
Application; and moreover, a Minor Permit Amendment can be issued without a hearing.




During a pre-application meeting with DEEP on July 28 MIRA requested that its application be
treated the same as Covanta’s, since the transfer authority that MIRA will seek in its application
is identical to the transfer authority that Covanta sought in its application. MIRA pointed out that
this would reduce MIRA’s permit application fee by approximately $29,000 and would also
provide the flexibility of foregoing a hearing if DEEP chose to do so.

Notwithstanding that MIRA will follow the direction received by DEEP in its July 8
correspondence, by email to MIRA dated August 5 DEEP reiterated its position that MIRA’s
application must be submitted as a permit modification rather than a minor permit amendment,

holding MIRA to a more rigorous and significantly more costly standard than that to which
Covanta was held.

- Request for Proposals to Support MSW Transfer Activities

In 2015, pursuant to State law, the Connecticut Department of Energy and Environmental
Protection undertook a request for proposals process intended to bring about a comprehensive
redevelopment of the entire CSWS (the Resource Recovery Facility, Transfer Stations and
Recycling Facility). This process did not conclude successfully; the magnitude of investment
required in relation to the nature of refurbishment work led to a lack of adequate financial
commitments. Consequently, MIRA is no longer pursuing a comprehensive CSWS

redevelopment project and is instead undertaking component projects where necessary and
feasible.

At this time, MIRA anticipates suspending combustion of MSW at its Resource Recovery
Facility and commencing transfer operations on or about June 30, 2022.

Accordingly, in late Fiscal Year 2021 MIRA issued three Requests for Proposals (“RFP”) to
support a transition to transfer of MSW that is delivered to the CSWS.

RFPs for Transportation and Disposal

Inlate FY 2021 MIRA issued two RFPs for the purpose of contracting for the transportation and

disposal of MSW, currently processed and combusted at MIRA’s Resource Recovery Facility, to
Alternate Disposal Facilities as follows:

e Regional T&D RFP - On May 13, 2021 MIRA issued a Request for Proposals for
Transportation and Disposal of MSW that defined Alternate Disposal Facilities as regional
resource recovery facilities or transfer stations served by rail or roadway operating within the
State of Connecticut, or in reasonable proximity to the State border in New York,
Massachusetts or Rhode Island; and

e Landfill T&D RFP - On May 13, 2021 MIRA also issued a Request for Proposals for
Transportation and Disposal of MSW that defined Alternate Disposal Facilities as out of
State landfills primarily located in the states of Pennsylvania, New York and Massachusetts

or other state landfill facilities, or other disposal facilities, willing and able to accept delivery
of MSW from MIRA.



MIRA intends to enter into agreements for the transportation and disposal of MSW pursuant to
the Landfill T&D RFP to the extent adequate capacity is not procured through the Regional T&D
RFP, or which may offer more economical solutions than result from the Regional Disposal RFP.

The T&D RFPs and resulting agreements are intended to satisfy delivery commitments made to
MIRA pursuant to the Municipal Service Agreements.

RFP for Transfer Facility Q&M

On June 16, 2021, at the end of its FY 2021, MIRA issued one RFP for the purpose of
contracting for the Operation, Maintenance and Optional Future Development of CSWS Transfer
Facilities. MSW currently processed and combusted at the Resource Recovery Facility will
instead be transported and disposed at Alternate Disposal Facilities as follows:

* MSW presently delivered to the Torrington, Watertown and Essex Transfer Stations, and
transferred to the Resource Recovery Facility for processing and combustion, will instead be
transported directly to alternate properly licensed disposal facilities.

* Provided that DEEP issues a modified solid waste operating permit that authorizes MIRA to
conduct transfer activities, the Hartford RRF will be converted by MIRA and /or a third party
contractor into the Hartford Transfer Station effective no earlier than July 1, 2022.

* MSW delivered directly to the Hartford Transfer Station will be transferred onto vehicles for
subsequent transportation to and disposal at properly licensed solid waste disposal facilities.

Pursuant to this RFP, MIRA intends to enter into Transfer Station Agreements that will provide
the necessary CSWS Transfer Facility operating and maintenance services while at the same
time leveraging the private use and development thereof to lower MIRA’s overall cost of service
and advance the State’s long term goals for environmentally responsible treatment of MSW.
Opportunities to advance the state’s long term goals may include, but are not limited to,
improvements or procedural modifications at the CSWS Transfer Facilities to facilitate
transferring MSW on a time- or quantity-limited basis, facilitating unit-based pricing for MSW
disposal; promotion of recycling; separation of food waste at the point of generation for
recycling, waste reduction incentives, organics diversion pilots, and other approaches to mitigate
the environmental impact of waste generated by MIRA’s customers.

MIRA’s primary goal with these RFP initiatives is to continue providing for the least cost, lowest
risk, environmentally responsible processing of MSW at least through the June 30, 2027
expiration of MIRA’s Municipal Service Agreements.

These RFPs may be found on MIRA’s website, at https://www.ctmira.org/business-links/current-
bids-rfp-rfg/

During FY 2022 MIRA will evaluate the responses to these RFPs, make selection decisions,

undertake any necessary facility modifications, and enter into contracts with the selected
proposers.



C. Development of Closure Plan for MIRA’s Resource Recovery Facility in Hartford

In accordance with RCSA 22a-209-13, the regulation governing closure of solid waste facilities,
MIRA has engaged an environmental engineering consulting firm to support MIRA in the
development of a closure plan for its Hartford RRF. Upon completion of the closure plan, which
will include an associated closure cost estimate, MIRA wi] submit the plan to DEEP for its
review. MIRA EXpects to submit its closure plan to DEEP during the fall of 2021

The Closure Plan and closure cost estimate will be developed based on the following assumptions:

* The closure plan will address areas of the facility on or in which solid waste management

activities have been conducted. These areas will include both the Waste Processing Facility
and the Power Block F acility.

* Remediation of a]] historic below-grade soil contamination has already been undertaken
pursuant to Connecticyt’s Property Transfer Program to comply with industria] / commercial
standards; consequently, performance of such remediation activities under the closure plan
are anticipated to be minimal,

* MIRA’s jet turbine facility is not subject to regulation by RCSA 22a-209-13; accordingly, it
will not be addressed in the closure plan,

In order to develop the closure plan, MIRA’g consultant will perform site visits and
investigations to evaluate facility conditions and wi]] identify appropriate activities necessary to

safely secure the facility and equipment, including but not limited to such activities as:

* Review of permits and regulatory obligations that may have provisions associated with
closure activities, or which may include requirements for closure plans.

* Identify and develop plans for the proper removal of waste materials from equipment and
arcas that have been used for the receipt and processing of solid waste at the RRF,

* Identify any applicable decontamination standards for building surfaces and equipment that
will remain intact after the completion of closure activities.

* Develop provisions for the prevention of unauthorized access to the buildings and equipment.

D. MIRA Activities in support of the Comprehensive Materials Management Strategy

Following are activities and initiatives that MIRA wil] continue or will initiate during its Fiscal

Year 2022 in order to support the goals contained in the State’s Comprehensive Materials
Management Strategy.



MIRA’s Requests for Proposals, discussed above, have been structured to solicit prospective
vendors to undertake and conduct diversion and recycling activities in addition to the straight
transfer of MSW, if and where possible.

MIRA has an ongoing Partnership with WasteZero, Inc. to put a Unit Based Pricing Pilot
program in place with a MIRA contracted municipality if such municipality wants to do so.
MIRA established this partnership with WasteZero, Inc. in 2020, and solicited MIRA
contracted municipalities to participate. A copy of the letter that was sent to MIRA
municipalities by MIRA and WasteZero is included in this Section 5.

MIRA inspects, and where necessary rejects, loads of recyclables delivered to its Murphy
Road facility in the event the loads contain an unacceptable quantity of non-recyclable
material. The additional cost that the hauler/municipality delivering the material will pay if
the level of contamination is unacceptable serves as an incentive to reduce contamination and
improve the quality of the material.

Retaining the capacity to transfer approximately 700 tons per day in central Connecticut is
preferable to losing this capacity by simply closing the facility, and will serve as a short term
solution for ensuring in-state capacity while more preferable long term solid waste
management solutions are developed.

Maintaining permitted authority for solid waste activities at this site provides additional time
for stakeholders to determine whether it is in the State’s interest to foreclose permanently the

authority to manage solid waste at this site versus siting a new/emerging solid waste
management technology at the site.

Accordingly, to preserve capacity to manage MSW in Connecticut MIRA will submit a
permit modification application to receive authority to transfer MSW.

In order to support the diversion of organic material (e.g., food waste) from the municipal
solid wastestream, MIRA is prepared to amend its municipal service agreement, as may be
necessary, with any of its member municipalities that wish to establish a residential source
separated organics diversion program in their city or town.



MIR:

Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority

200 CORPORATE PLACE  Suite 202 ® Rocky Hill ® CONNECTICUT e 06067 @ TELEPHONE (860 757-7700
FAX (860) 757-7740
October 27, 2020

Mr. John Mehr, Town Manager
Town of Rocky Hill

761 Old Main Street

Rocky Hill, CT 06067

Dear Mr. Mehr,

The Materials Innovation and Recycling Authority (“MIRA”) is seeking municipal participation in
“Pay as You Throw” demonstration projects in an effort to turn the page on the unsuccessfully

concluded Connecticut Solid Waste System (“CSWS”) redevelopment project commonly known
as Resource Rediscovery.

MIRA’s mission is to insure the continued availability of at cost, efficient and environmentally
sound recycling and MSW disposal services sufficient to meet the needs of its member
municipalities. To that end the Department of Energy and Environmental Protection (DEEP) and
MIRA had pursued the legislatively mandated procurement process to redevelop the CSWS
which would have included renovation of the South Meadows waste-to-energy facility and
recycling facility. The waste-to-energy facility, which provides 35% of the State’s post recycled
MSW disposal capacity (720,000 tons/year) is in need of substantial capital reinvestment absent
which it will cease to operate.

Regrettably MIRA has been unable to enlist State support for the public financing necessary to
redevelop and maintain continued economic operation of the CSWS. Accordingly,
municipalities, their residents and businesses will soon endure a substantial reduction in
Connecticut disposal capacity and will necessarily rely on less environmentally desirable
alternative disposal (landfills) in other states. This loss of in-state disposal capacity, along with
the 400,000 tons of MSW already being hauled out of state and the anticipated closure of
regional landfills in New England and New York state, will dramatically affect the availability and
reliability of MSW disposal and tipping fee costs for many years to come.

CT state policy recognizes the practical, environmental and economic importance of reliable
and available MSW disposal capacity and accordingly insists upon self-sufficiency in state
disposal capacity. Regrettably that is not realistic for CT at this time.

However, there are alternative, proactive materials management solutions available to reduce
the demand for disposal capacity. The more that we can reduce MSW generation, the less
material, taxpayer dollars and environmental impact will be spent in hauling our waste to out-
of-state landfills.

PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER



We would like to introduce you to and invite your participation in, a MIRA member town
specific, Save Money and Reduce Trash (SMART) Demonstration Project. This project is
designed to help reduce the waste generated, disposed and paid for by municipalities. The
primary goals of the project would be to demonstrate and quantify the extent to which SMART
can be an effective means of reducing waste generation, increasing diversion and thus reducing
the amount of disposal capacity needed in-state, while providing a funding mechanism for
waste management operations and disposal infrastructure development. The project design
provides for the elimination of the tipping fee your municipality pays to MIRA saving Rocky Hill
approximately $486,884.00 annually.

SMART, also known as Pay-As-You-Throw or Unit Based Pricing has been promoted by the
United States Environmental Protection Agency, DEEP, and many states to reduce solid waste
generation. Itis also included in Connecticut’s solid waste policy, detailed in the
Comprehensive Materials Management Strategy. According to DEEP, SMART will lead to
significant waste reduction, and will help ensure the success of recycling initiatives, including
food waste collection and Extended Producer Responsibility (EPR). As a reflection of the
importance of this effort, DEEP has made grant funding available for municipalities that
implement a SMART program in the next six months.

The demonstration project that MIRA and program administrator WasteZero, Inc. propose will
direct waste generators, your residents, to utilize program purchased plastic bags for all MSW.
The program will provide: 1) stakeholder education, and if needed, public engagement in
support of your participation in the program; 2) start-up logistics including retail store
recruitment, bag distribution, accounting, and legal assistance with ordinance changes; 3)
compliance protocol development, training, and assistance as necessary; and 4) ongoing
program management. Retail outlets will distribute SMART bag sales revenue to MIRA and
MIRA will apply those revenues to Rocky Hill's municipal account and will rebate any revenues
in excess of the tip fees due under the Municipal Service Agreement. Additional details of the
program modeling and execution will be provided to interested municipalities.

You can expect to receive a follow up phone call from Ms. Kristen Brown of WasteZero, Inc. to
schedule a Zoom briefing for a more detailed discussion of the program, its design and
execution.

Thank you for your consideration. We hope you will elect to participate in this innovative and
proactive project that holds promise to improve environmental performance and conserve
valuable municipal public works funds. In the meantime, please don’t hesitate to call with any
questions.

zjf//éﬂ}érk %%W/’//

Thomas D. Kirk, President Kristen Brown




